OVER 2,000 HEALTHY BREAKFAST RECIPES

# CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY

HTTP://DERGIPARK.GOV.TR/CPOST

VOLUME I ISSUE I IECMSA-2018



ISSN 2651-544X

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# CONFERENCE PROCEEDINGS OF SCIENCE AND TECHNOLOGY



ISSN: 2651-544X

### Praface

Since 2012, series of IECMSA conferences have been held regularly every year and featured many distinguished participants from the across the globe. After the following six very successful international conferences; IECMSA-2012 Prishtine-Kosovo, IECMSA-2013 Sarajevo-Bosnia and Herzegovina, IECMSA-2014 Vienna-Austria, IECMSA-2015 Athens-Greece, IECMSA-2016 Belgrade-Serbia, and IECMSA-2017 Budapest-Hungary, we have successfully completed 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications. On the basis of the impact of these remarkable conferences, IECMSA-2018 Kyiv-Ukraine has witnessed significant growth. The scientific committee of IECMSA-2018 accepted 184 oral (63%) and 16 poster (50%) presentations. The authors of submitted presentations come from 44 countries. Authors of accepted presentations are from 26 countries. The scientific program of the conference features invited talks, followed by contributed oral and poster presentations in parallel sessions.

The main aim of the conference includes almost all active research areas in pure, applied and inter-disciplinary mathematics reflecting the applications in the areas of sciences and engineering.

This volume contains the proceedings of the selected contributions of the participants of the 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018) scheduled during August 28-31, 2018 in Kyiv, Ukraine.

The selection of papers included in this volume is based on a rigorous peer review process by the committee of experts in various disciplines. Every submitted paper was first screened by the members of the editorial board and once it clears the initial screening, it was sent for peer review to at least two potential reviewers in the related area of expertise from the pool of potential reviewers. The paper is accepted if at least two reviewers recommend it for acceptance. We thank all the invited speakers and the authors who made their valuable contributions towards the success of the conference IECMSA-2018. We are very much grateful to the members of the program committee for their continuous guidance and support which led to the selection of the contributed talks and the papers published in this volume.

See you in future conferences,

Prof. Dr. Murat TOSUN

Editor in Chief

IECMSA-2018

Murat Tosun Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya-TÜRKİYE tosun@sakarya.edu.tr

#### **Managing Editors**

Emrah Evren Kara Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Düzce University, Düzce-TÜRKİYE eevrenkara@duzce.edu.tr

Murat Kirişçi Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, İstanbul University, İstanbul-TÜRKİYE murat.kirisci@istanbul.edu.tr

Merve İlkhan Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Düzce University, Düzce-TÜRKİYE merveilkhan@duzce.edu.tr Mahmut Akyiğit Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya-TÜRKİYE makyigit@sakarya.edu.tr

Fuat Usta Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Düzce University, Düzce-TÜRKİYE fuatusta@duzce.edu.tr

#### Editorial Board of Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology

H. Hilmi Hacısalihoğlu Bilecik Seyh Edebali University, TÜRKİYE

Sidney A. Morris Federation University, AUSTRALIA

Flaut Cristina Ovidius University, ROMANIA

Şenol Dost Hacettepe University, TÜRKİYE Ljubisa Kocinac University of Nis, SERBIA

Soley Ersoy Sakarya University, TÜRKİYE

F. Nejat Ekmekci Ankara University, TÜRKİYE

Mohammad Saeed Khan Sultan Qaboos University, UMMAN Müjgan Tez Marmara University, TÜRKİYE

Pranash Kumar University of Northern British Columbia, CANADA

Mehmet Ali Güngör Sakarya University, TÜRKİYE Ayşe Neşe Dernek Marmara University, TÜRKİYE

Sadullah Sakallıoğlu Çukurova University, TÜRKİYE

Hidayet Hüda Kösal Sakarya University, TÜRKİYE

Soley Ersoy

TÜRKİYE

Sakarya University,

#### **Guest Editors**

Mehmet Ali Güngör Sakarya University, TÜRKİYE

Hidayet Hüda Kösal Sakarya University, TÜRKİYE

Editorial Secretariat Pınar Zengin Alp Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Düzce University, Düzce-TÜRKİYE Editorial Secretariat Hande Kormalı Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya-TÜRKİYE

### Contents

1	Circling-Point Curve in Minkowski Plane Soley Ersoy, Kemal Eren	1-6
2	The Norm of Certain Matrix Operators On the New Block Sequence Space Sezer Erdem, Serkan Demiriz	7-10
3	Compactness of Matrix Operators on the Banach Space $\ell_p(T)$ Merve İlkhan, Emrah Evren Kara	11-15
4	Helicoidal Surfaces Which Have the Timelike Axis in Minkowski Space with Density Önder Gökmen Yıldız, Mahmut Ergüt, Mahmut Akyiğit	16-19
5	Further Results for Elliptic Biquaternions Kahraman Esen Özen, Murat Tosun	20-27
6	One Parameter Elliptical Planar Motion Ayşe Zeynep Azak	28-31
7	On Some New Paranormed Lucas Sequence Spaces and Lucas Core Serkan Demiriz, Hacer Bilgin Ellidokuzoğlu	32-35
8	An Algorithm for Solutions to the Elliptic Quaternion Matrix Equation $AX = B$ Hidayet Hüda Kösal	36-39
9	An Evaluation of Mathematics Achievement of High School Students with Mathematics Anxiety	
	Şüheda Güray	40-45

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 1-6

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# **Circling-Point Curve in Minkowski Plane**

ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

Kemal Eren<sup>1,\*</sup> Soley Ersoy<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Fatsa Science High School, Ordu, Turkey, ORCID: 0000-0001-5273-7897

<sup>2</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Sciences and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey, ORCID: 0000-0002-7183-7081

\* Corresponding Author E-mail: kemal.eren1@ogr.sakarya.edu.tr

**Abstract:** The purpose of this paper is to study the circling-point curve and its degenerate cases at the initial position of motion in Minkowski plane. The first part of the paper is devoted to the determination Bottema's instantaneous invariants and trajectory of origin with respect to these invariants in Minkowski plane. The intersection points of the circling-point curve and inflection curve are called Ball points. Here the number and also the geometric location of Ball points in Minkowski plane have been determined. The fundamental geometric property of a trajectory of each point in a plane is its curvature function  $\kappa$ . Under consideration  $\kappa = \kappa' = \kappa'' = 0$ , the existence conditions of Ball points in Minkowski plane have been given.

Keywords: Circling-point curve, Ball point, Instantaneous Invariants, Burmester Theory.

#### 1 Introduction

Oene Bottema (1901-1992), Dutch mathematician devised the method of instantaneous invariants in instantaneous kinematics. Various geometric and kinematic properties of Euclidean planar and spatial motions are introduced with respect to the instantaneous invariants. The concept of instantaneous invariants is characterizing the trajectory of any point on a moving rigid body with arbitrary degrees [1–3]. In the meantime, Veldkamp has called the aforementioned invariants as B-invariants [4] and has handled the application of B-invariants to Burmester theory [4–6]. Burmester theory deals with the formulation of special locus curves as inflection circle, circling point curve, twice circling curve, and their intersection points as Ball and Burmester point for planar or spatial motions. Although this analytical method is preferred in a great amount of study of the kinematics, there have been few investigations on non-Euclidean planar kinematics [7, 8].

In consideration of these studies, we investigate the circling-point curve and its degenerate cases of the motion of Minkowski planes and give the existence conditions of Ball points in Minkowski plane.

#### 2 Preliminaries

The Minkowski plane L is the plane  $R^2$  endowed with the Lorentzian scalar product given by  $\langle u, w \rangle = u_1 w_1 - u_2 w_2$ , where  $u = (u_1, u_2)$  and  $w = (w_1, w_2)$ . The norm of a vector U is defined by  $||u|| = \sqrt{|\langle u, u \rangle|}$ . Let  $L_m$  and  $L_f$  be two coincident Minkowski planes,  $L_m$  moving with respect to  $L_f$ . The motion can be represented by

$$\begin{split} X\left(\varphi\right) &= x\cosh\varphi + y\sinh\varphi + a\left(\varphi\right)\\ Y\left(\varphi\right) &= x\sinh\varphi + y\cosh\varphi + b\left(\varphi\right) \end{split}$$

such that Cartesian frames of reference xoy and XOY are located in  $L_m$  and  $L_f$ , respectively. The position corresponding to  $\varphi = 0$  of  $L_m$  will be named zero-position. The value for zero-position of the *n*th (n = 0, 1, 2, ...) derivative of a function f of  $\varphi$  with respect to  $\varphi$  will be denoted by  $f_n$ .

The derivatives  $a_n$ ,  $b_n$  (n = 0, 1, 2, ...) are known as Bottema's instantaneous invariants of the motion [2, 3]. It is well-known that the canonical relative system can be constructed by choose of

$$a = b = a_1 = b_1 = a_2 = 0$$
 and  $b_2 = -1$ .

So, the instantaneous invariants  $a_k$  (k = 3, 4, ..., n),  $b_k$  (k = 2, 3, ..., n) completely characterize the infinitesimal properties of motion of Minkowski planes up to the n - th order as

$$\begin{array}{lll} X = x, & X_1 = y, & X_2 = x, & X_3 = y + a_3, \\ Y = y, & Y_1 = x, & Y_2 = y - 1, & Y_3 = x + b_3, \end{array} \tag{1}$$

at the zero-position [7, 8].

The non-null trajectory of the points satisfying  $\kappa = 0$  is the inflection circle where  $X' \neq \pm Y'$  in the Minkowski plane. Then the equation of the inflection circle can be obtained from X'' : Y'' = X' : Y' since the curvature function is

$$\kappa = \frac{X'Y'' - X''Y'}{\left| (X')^2 - (Y')^2 \right|^{\frac{3}{2}}}.$$
(2)

If we substitute the equalities of (1) into (2) at zero position we get the equation of the inflection circle during planar motion of  $L_m$  with respect to  $L_f$  as follows

$$x^2 - y^2 + y = 0. (3)$$

where  $(x, y) \neq (0, 0), x \neq \mp y$  or  $y \neq 0$  [7, 8].

#### 3 The Trajectory of Origin of Minkowski Plane

The trajectory of the point (0,0) of the Minkowski plane  $L_m$ , which is coincident with the pole, can be given by

$$X = \sum_{n=3}^{\infty} \frac{a_n}{n!} \varphi^n, \quad Y = \frac{-1}{2} \varphi^2 + \sum_{n=3}^{\infty} \frac{b_n}{n!} \varphi^n \tag{4}$$

for sufficiently small values of  $|\varphi|$  at the zero-position with respect to canonical relative systems.

**Case 1.** Let  $a_3 \neq 0$ . If  $\varepsilon$  is a sufficiently small positive number, then the trajectory described through the time interval  $[-\varepsilon, \varepsilon]$  has a cusp at the pole of zero-position since  $\lim_{\varphi \to 0} |\kappa| = \infty$  and the tangent of the trajectory is pole normal.

**Case 2.** Let  $a_3 = 0$ ,  $a_4 \neq 0$ . In this case  $a_2b_3 - a_3b_2 = 0$  and  $a_2b_4 - a_4b_2 \neq 0$ . So two branches of the trajectory stay at the same side of the tangent. If  $\varepsilon$  is a sufficiently small positive number, then the trajectory described through the time interval  $[-\varepsilon, \varepsilon]$  has a ramphoid cusp at the pole of the zero-position. In this case the curvature is obtained as

$$\begin{split} \kappa &= \frac{a_4}{3} + \left(\frac{5a_4b_3}{12} + \frac{a_5}{8}\right)\varphi + \left(\frac{-a_4b_3^2}{8} + \frac{a_4b_4}{6} + \frac{7a_5b_3}{48} + \frac{a_6}{30}\right)\varphi^2 \\ &+ \left(\frac{7a_4b_5}{144} - \frac{a_4b_3^2}{12} - \frac{a_4b_3b_4}{24} + \frac{a_5b_4}{18} - \frac{a_5b_3^2}{16} + \frac{3a_6b_3}{80} + \frac{a_7}{144}\right)\varphi^3 + \dots \end{split}$$

The successive curvatures of the trajectory at the pole are

$$\kappa_0 = \frac{a_4}{3},\tag{5}$$

$$\kappa_1 = \frac{5a_4b_3}{12} + \frac{a_5}{8},\tag{6}$$

$$\kappa_2 = \frac{-a_4 b_3^2}{4} + \frac{a_4 b_4}{3} + \frac{7a_5 b_3}{24} + \frac{a_6}{15},\tag{7}$$

$$\kappa_3 = \frac{7a_4b_5}{24} - \frac{a_4b_3^2}{2} - \frac{a_4b_3b_4}{4} + \frac{a_5b_4}{3} - \frac{3a_5b_3^2}{8} + \frac{9a_6b_3}{40} + \frac{a_7}{24}$$

**Case 3.** Let  $a_3 = a_4 = 0$ . For sufficiently small values of  $\varepsilon$ , the trajectory described through the time interval  $[-\varepsilon, \varepsilon]$  has cusp or ramphoid cusp, provided that the smallest value of n, where  $a_n \neq 0$ , is odd or even, respectively. In this case the curvature is given by

$$\kappa = 0 + \frac{a_5}{8}\varphi + \left(\frac{7a_5b_3}{48} + \frac{a_6}{30}\right)\varphi^2 + \left(\frac{a_5b_4}{18} - \frac{a_5b_3^2}{16} + \frac{3a_6b_3}{80} + \frac{a_7}{144}\right)\varphi^3 + \dots$$

that is, the successive curvatures at pole are

$$\kappa_0 = 0,$$
  

$$\kappa_1 = \frac{a_5}{8},$$
  

$$\kappa_2 = \frac{7a_5b_3}{24} + \frac{a_6}{15},$$
  

$$= \frac{a_5b_4}{3} - \frac{3a_5b_3^2}{8} + \frac{9a_6b_3}{40} + \frac{a_7}{24}$$

#### 4 Circling-Point Curve of Motions in Minkowski Plane

 $\kappa_3 =$ 

**Definition 1.** The locus of the points with constant non-null trajectory curvature at the zero-position of the Minkowski plane  $L_m$  is called circling-point curve or cubic of stationary curvatures and denoted by cp.

This means that the locus of the points satisfying  $\kappa' = 0$  where  $(X')^2 - (Y')^2 \neq 0$  is the circling-point curve in Minkowski plane. The differentiation of the equation (2) is

$$\kappa' = \frac{\left(X'Y''' - X'''Y'\right)\left(\left(X'\right)^2 - \left(Y'\right)^2\right) - 3\left(X'Y'' - X''Y'\right)\left(X'X'' - Y'Y''\right)}{\left|\left(X'\right)^2 - \left(Y'\right)^2\right|^{\frac{3}{2}}}$$

In this regard, if we consider the equations of (1) and the last equation together, one can prove the following theorem.

**Theorem 1.** In Minkowski plane the equation of the circling-point curve cp of the original motion  $L_m/L_f$  is

$$\left(x^{2} - y^{2}\right)\left(a_{3}x - b_{3}y\right) + 3x\left(x^{2} - y^{2} + y\right) = 0$$
(8)

where  $(x, y) \neq (0, 0)$  or  $x \neq \mp y$ .

If we recall the equation (6) for the case of  $a_3 = 0$  and  $a_4 \neq 0$ , we can prove the following theorem.

**Theorem 2.** The trajectory of the points different from the origin is the circling-point curve if and only if is

$$10a_4b_3 + 3a_5 = 0.$$

in case of  $a_3 = 0$  and  $a_4 \neq 0$ .

The graphics of the circling point curves for special cases in the Minkowski plane are drawn hereinafter and further detailed analysis of the graphics enables us to compare them with each other.



**Fig. 1**: The circling point curve cp for  $a_3 = 2$  and  $b_3 = 1$ .

The circling point curve cp has node point at the pole. At the same time, tangents of the circling point curve cp are pole tangent and pole normal. Consequently, the cubic curve cp is a strophoid in Minkowski plane. Now let us investigate the degenerate cases of the circling point curve cp.

i. If  $a_3 \neq -3$  and  $b_3 = 0$  the equation of the circling-point curve cp in Minkowski plane is

$$x\left((a_3+3)\left(x^2-y^2\right)+3y\right) = 0.$$
(9)

This geometrically means that cp consists of the pole normal and the circle, which is donated by  $\Gamma$ , with the imaginary radius  $\frac{3i}{2(a_3+3)}$ . The center of  $\Gamma$  is  $\left(0, \frac{3}{2(a_3+3)}\right)$  at the pole normal, see Figure 2a.

In addition, if  $a_3 = 0$  when  $b_3 = 0$ , then the equation (9) becomes  $x^2 - y^2 + y = 0$ , that is, the circling point curve cp coincides with the inflection circle in the case of  $a_3 = 0$  and  $b_3 = 0$ .

ii. If  $a_3 = -3$  and  $b_3 \neq 0$  the equation of the circling-point curve cp in Minkowski plane is

$$y\left(b_3\left(x^2-y^2\right)-3x\right)=0.$$

Thus, the circling-point curve cp consists of pole tangent and the circle, which is donated by  $\Gamma_0$ , with the real radius  $\frac{3}{2b_3}$ . The center of  $\Gamma_0$  is  $\left(\frac{3}{2b_3}, 0\right)$  at the pole tangent, see Figure 2b.

iii. If  $a'_3 = -3$  and  $b_3 = 0$ , the equation of the circling-point curve cp is xy = 0. The curve consists of pole tangent and pole normal, see Figure 2c.

The circles  $\Gamma$  and  $\Gamma_0$  are the circles of curvature of the circling-point curve cp at its node. From here the geometrical interpretation of the invariants  $a_3$  and  $b_3$  can be given as in the following theorem.



Fig. 2: The circling-point curves in Minkowski plane

**Theorem 3.**  $a_3$  equals 3/2 times the curvature of that branch of cp that touches the pole tangent and similarly  $b_3$  equals 3/2 times the curvature of that branch of cp that touches the pole normal.

The equation of the real asymptote of the circling-point curve cp is obtained as

$$\left( (a_3+3)^2 - b_3^2 \right) (b_3y - (a_3+3)x) + 3(a_3+3)b_3 = 0.$$
(10)

The real asymptotes of the circling-point curve cp drawn in the Figure 1 can be seen in the undermentioned figure.



**Fig. 3**: The real asymptotes of the circling point curve cp for  $a_3 = 2$  and  $b_3 = 1$ .

Furthermore, we can obtain a parametric representation of and irreducible curve cp by putting y = ux. This parametric equation is

$$x = \frac{3u}{(u^2 - 1)(-b_3u + a_3 + 3)}, \quad y = \frac{3u^2}{(u^2 - 1)(-b_3u + a_3 + 3)}.$$
(11)

If we substitute the equation (11) into the equation (10) we find parameter-value  $u = \frac{(a_3+3)}{b_3}$ . This parameter-value corresponds to the point of intersection of cp with its asymptote.

In the case of  $a_3 \neq -3$  and  $b_3 = 0$ , the equation (11) takes the form

$$x = \frac{3u}{(u^2 - 1)(a_3 + 3)}, \quad y = \frac{3u^2}{(u^2 - 1)(a_3 + 3)}$$

which is the parametric representation of the circle  $\Gamma$ .

In a similar vein, if  $a_3 = -3$  and  $b_3 \neq 0$ , under consideration the equation (11)the parametric representation of  $\Gamma_0$  is given by

$$x = \frac{3}{b_3 \left(1 - u^2\right)}, \quad y = \frac{3u}{b_3 \left(1 - u^2\right)}$$

#### 5 Ball Points in Minkowski Plane

Definition 2. The intersection points of the circling-point curve and inflection curve are called Ball points and denoted by Bl points.

From this definition and the equations (3) and (8) the coordinates of a Bl point in Minkowski Plane is found as

$$\left(\frac{a_3b_3}{a_3^2 - b_3^2}, \quad \frac{a_3^2}{a_3^2 - b_3^2}\right). \tag{12}$$

The pole is not a Bl point if  $a_3 \neq 0$ . Therefore we may draw the conclusion that in the case of  $a_3 \neq 0$  and  $a_3 \neq \pm b_3$  there is only one point in the zero position given by (12).

From the equation (12), if  $a_3 = 0$ ,  $b_3 \neq 0$  we cannot directly say that the origin is Bl point. Therefore in the case of  $a_3 = 0$ ,  $b_3 \neq 0$ , if  $a_4 = a_5 = 0$  we know that  $\kappa_0 = \kappa_1 = 0$  is satisfied from the equations (5) and (6). From here if  $a_3 = a_4 = a_5 = 0$  the origin is Bl point. Providing that  $a_3 = 0$ ,  $b_3 \neq 0$ , there is no Bl point if and only if  $a_4 \neq 0$  or  $a_5 \neq 0$  (because of  $\kappa_0 \neq 0$  or  $\kappa_1 \neq 0$ ). Finally, we can say that there is no Bl point if  $a_3 = 0$ ,  $b_3 \neq 0$ ,  $a_4^2 + a_5^2 \neq 0$ . On the other hand if  $a_3 = b_3 = 0$  the circling point curve splits up into the inflection circle and the pole normal. In the case of  $a_4^2 + a_5^2 \neq 0$  any point on the inflection circle with the possible exception of the origin is a Bl point of the zero position, the origin being a Bl point too, if  $a_4 = a_5 = 0$  at the same time.

The aforementioned analysis of Bl points in Minkowski plane is outlined in the following table.

Conditions	Bl point(s)
$a_3 \neq 0, a_3 \neq \pm b_3$	$\left(rac{a_3b_3}{a_3^2-b_3^2}, ~~ rac{a_3^2}{a_3^2-b_3^2} ight)$
$a_3 = a_4 = a_5 = 0,  b_3 \neq 0$	the origin
$a_3 = 0, b_3 \neq 0, a_4^2 + a_5^2 \neq 0$	none
$a_3 = b_3 = 0, a_4^2 + a_5^2 \neq 0$	the points on the inflection circle
	with the exception of the origin
$a_3 = a_4 = a_5 = b_3 = 0$	all points of the inflection circle

As a consequence, if  $a_3 \neq 0$  and  $a_3 \neq \pm b_3$  the *Bl* point of the zero position is in the parametric representation (11) of *cp* indicated by the parameter value  $u = a_3/b_3$ .

#### 6 Ball Points with Excess in Minkowski Plane

Definition 3. If we have for a Ball point of a given position

$$\kappa = \kappa' = \dots = \kappa^{(r+1)} = 0, \ \kappa^{(r+2)} \neq 0$$

this point is called a Ball point with excess r and denoted by  $Bl_r$  point.

In the case of  $a_3 \neq 0$ , the zero position has a Bl point. Under this consideration the following theorem can be given.

**Theorem 4.** In the case  $a_3 \neq 0$ , the Bl point is a Bl<sub>1</sub> point if and only if

$$a_4b_3 - a_3b_4 = a_3.$$

*Proof:* From the equation (2),  $\kappa = \kappa' = \kappa'' = 0$  if and only if  $X_1Y_4 - X_4Y_1 = 0$ . If we substitute the equation (1) into  $X_1Y_4 - X_4Y_1 = 0$  we get

$$x^2 - y^2 + a_4 x - b_4 y = 0.$$

If the  $Bl_1$  point has the coordinates  $(x_0, y_0)$  this last equation takes form of

$$x_0^2 - y_0^2 + a_4 x_0 - b_4 y_0 = 0. (13)$$

In virtue of  $Bl_1$  point is also on the inflection circle, the common solution of  $x_0^2 - y_0^2 + y_0 = 0$  and the equation (4) gives us

$$a_4 x_0 + (-b_4 - 1) y_0 = 0. (14)$$

Substituting the equation (12) into the equation (14) completes the proof.

This relation represents a necessary and sufficient condition for the Bl point of the zero position to be a  $Bl_1$  point for the case of  $a_3 \neq 0$ . In the zero position if  $a_3 = a_4 = a_5 = 0$ ,  $b_3 \neq 0$  the origin is the only Bl point. From the equation (7) this point is a  $Bl_1$  point if and only if  $a_6 = 0$ . In the case of  $a_3 = b_3 = 0$ ,  $a_4^2 + a_5^2 \neq 0$  any point of the inflection circle with the exception of the origin is a Bl point of the zero position. From the equation (13) and the equation (14) it follows that all these points are  $Bl_1$  points if and only if  $a_4 = 0$ ,  $b_4 = -1$  whereas in the case  $a_4 \neq 0$  the only  $Bl_1$  point of the zero position is given by:

$$\left(\frac{(b_4+1)a_4}{a_4^2-(b_4+1)^2}, \quad \frac{a_4^2}{a_4^2-(b_4+1)^2}\right)$$

In the case  $a_3 = a_4 = a_5 = b_3 = 0$  any point of the inflection circle is a Bl point of the zero point.

Π

If  $b_4 = -1$  at the same time, all these points with exception of the origin are  $Bl_1$  points, the origin being in this case is a  $Bl_1$  point if moreover  $a_6 = 0$ . If, however,  $b_4 \neq -1$  there is no  $Bl_1$  point unless  $a_6 = 0$  in which case the origin is the only  $Bl_1$  point of the zero position. From here, we give conditions of being a  $Bl_1$  point in Minkowski plane in the following table.

Condition(s)	$Bl_1$ point(s)
$a_3 = a_4 b_3 - a_3 b_4 \neq 0, a_3 \neq \pm b_3$	$\left(rac{a_3b_3}{a_3^2-b_3^2}, \ rac{a_3^2}{a_3^2-b_3^2} ight)$
$a_3 = b_3 = 0, \ a_4 \neq 0$	$\left(\frac{a_4(b_4+1)}{a_4^2 - (b_4+1)^2}, \frac{a_4^2}{a_4^2 - (b_4+1)^2}\right)$
$a_3 = a_4 = a_5 = a_6 = 0, a_4^2 - (b_4 + 1)^2 \neq 0$	Origin

#### 7 References

- O. Bottema, On instantaneous invariants, Proceedings of the International Conference for Teachers of Mechanisms, New Haven (CT): Yale University, (1961), 159–164. [1] O. Bottema, On the determination of Burmester points for five distinct positions of a moving plane; and other topics, Advanced Science Seminar on Mechanisms, Yale University, [2] July 6-August 3, 1963.
- [3] O. Bottema, B. Roth, Theoretical Kinematics, New York (NY), Dover, 1990.
- [4]
- [5] [6]
- G. R. Veldkamp, *Curvature theory in plane kinematics*, New York (17), Dover, 1990.
  G. R. Veldkamp, *Some remarks on higher curvature theory*, J. Manuf. Sci. Eng., 89 (1967), 84–86.
  G. R. Veldkamp, *Canonical systems and instantaneous invariants in spatial kinematics*, J. Mech., 2(1967) 329–388.
  K. Eren, S. Ersoy, *Cardan positions in the Lorentzian plane*, Honam Math. J., 40(1), (2018) 187-198.
- [7]
- [8] K. Eren, S. Ersoy, Burmester theory in Cayley-Klein planes with affine base, J. Geom., 109(3):45 (2018).

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 7-10

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

## The Norm Of Certain Matrix Operators On The New Block Sequence Space

ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

Sezer Erdem<sup>1</sup> Serkan Demiriz<sup>2,\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Battalgazi Farabi Anatolian Imam Hatip High School, 44400 Malatya, Turkey. ORCID: 0000-0001-9420-8264

<sup>2</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Gaziosmanpasa University, 60240 Tokat, Turkey. ORCID: 0000-0002-4662-6020 \* Corresponding Author E-mail: serkandemiriz@gmail.com

Abstract: The purpose of the this study is to introduce the sequence space

$$\ell_p(E, B(r, s)) = \bigg\{ x = (x_n) \in \omega : \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \bigg| \sum_{j \in E_n} rx_j + \sum_{j \in E_{n+1}} sx_j \bigg|^p < \infty \bigg\},\$$

where  $E = (E_n)$  is a partition of finite subsets of the positive integers,  $r, s \in \mathbb{R} \setminus \{0\}$  and  $p \ge 1$ . The topological and algebraical properties of this space are examined. Furthermore, we establish some inclusion relations. Finally, the problem of finding the norm of certain matrix operators such as Copson and Hilbert from  $\ell_p$  into  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  is investigated.

Keywords: Capson operators, Hilbert operators, Matrix domain, Sequence spaces.

#### 1 Introduction

By a sequence space, we understand a linear subspace of  $\omega$ , the space of all real valued sequences  $x = (x_n)$ . The domain  $X_A$  of an infinite matrix A in a sequence space X is defined by

$$X_A = \{ x = (x_k) \in \omega : Ax \in X \},\tag{1}$$

which is a sequence space. If A is triangle, then one can easily observe that the sequence spaces  $X_A$  and X are linearly isomorphic, i.e.,  $X_A \cong X$ . In the past, several authors studied matrix transformations on the sequence spaces that are the matrix domains of triangle matrices in classical spaces  $\ell_p$ ,  $\ell_\infty$ , c and  $c_0$ . For instance, some matrix domains of the difference operator were studied in [1–8]. In these studies, the matrix domains are obtained by triangle matrices, hence these spaces are normed sequence spaces. For more details on the domain of triangle matrices in some spaces, the reader may refer to Chapter 4 of [9]. The matrix domains given in this paper specify by a certain non-triangle matrix, so we should not expect that related spaces are normed sequence spaces.

In this study, we define the sequence space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  and investigate some topological and algebraical properties of this space and derive inclusion relations concerning with its. Moreover, we shall consider the inequality of the form

$$||Ax||_{p,E,B(r,s)} \le U||x||_p$$

for all the sequence  $x \in \ell_p$ . The costant U not depending on x and we seek the smallest possible value of U. In the study, we examine the problem of finding the upper bound of certain matrix operators from  $\ell_p$  into  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  and we consider certain matrix operators such as Copson and Hilbert.

Let  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of the positive integers such that

$$\max E_n < \min E_{n+1},\tag{2}$$

for  $n = 1, 2, \dots$  Foroutannia defined the sequence space  $\ell_p(E)$  by

$$\ell_p(E) = \left\{ x = (x_n) \in \omega : \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \left| \sum_{j \in E_n} x_j \right|^p < \infty \right\} \quad (1 \le p < \infty),$$

with the semi-norm  $\|.\|_{p,E}$ , which is defined in the following way :

$$||x||_{p,E} = \left(\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \left|\sum_{j \in E_n} x_j\right|^p\right)^{1/p}.$$

It is significant that in the special case  $E_n = \{n\}$  for n = 1, 2, ..., we have  $\ell_p(E) = \ell_p$  and  $||x||_{p,E} = ||x||_p$ . For more details on the sequence space  $\ell_p(E)$ , the reader may refer to [10].

#### 2 The Block Sequence Space $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$ of Non-Absolute Type

Suppose  $E = (E_n)$  is a partition of finite subsets of the positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). We define the sequence space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  by

$$\ell_p(E, B(r, s)) = \left\{ x = (x_n) \in \omega : \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \left| \sum_{j \in E_n} rx_j + \sum_{j \in E_{n+1}} sx_j \right|^p < \infty \right\},$$

with the semi-norm  $\|.\|_{p,E,B(r,s)}$ , which is defined in the following way :

$$\|x\|_{p,E,B(r,s)} = \left(\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \left|\sum_{j\in E_n} rx_j + \sum_{j\in E_{n+1}} sx_j\right|^p\right)^{1/p}.$$
(3)

It should be noted that the function  $\|.\|_{p,E,B(r,s)}$  can not be norm, since  $x = (x_j) = \{(-1)^{j+1}\}_{j=1}^{\infty}$  and  $E = \{2n-1, 2n\}$  for all n, then  $\|x\|_{p,E,B(r,s)} = 0$  while  $x \neq 0$ .

It is also significant that in the special case r = 1 and s = -1, we have  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s)) = \ell_p(E, \Delta)$  [11]. If the infinite matrix  $A = \{a_{nk}\}$  is defined by

the infinite matrix 
$$A = \{a_{nk}\}$$
 is defined by

$$a_{nk} = \begin{cases} r , & \text{if } k \in E_n \\ s , & \text{if } k \in E_{n+1} \\ 0 , & \text{otherwise} \end{cases}$$

with the notation (1), we can redefine the space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  as follows:

$$\ell_p(E, B(r, s)) = (\ell_p)_A$$

Throughout this paper, the cardinal number of the set  $E_k$  is denoted by  $|E_k|$ .

Now we are beginning with the following theorem which is essential in the study.

**Theorem 1.** Let  $p \ge 1$  and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of the positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). The set  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  becomes a vector space with coordinatewise addition and scalar multiplication, which is a complete semi-normed space by  $\|\cdot\|_{p,E,B(r,s)}$  defined by (3).

It can easily checked that the absolute property does not hold on the space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$ , that is  $||x||_{p,E,B(r,s)} \neq ||x|||_{p,E,B(r,s)}$  for at least one sequence in the space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$ , and this says that  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  is a sequence space of nonabsolute type, where  $|x_k| = (|x_k|)$ .

**Theorem 2.** Let  $p \ge 1$  and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of the positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). If

$$M = \left\{ x = (x_n) : \sum_{j \in E_n} rx_j + \sum_{j \in E_{n+1}} sx_j = 0, \forall n \right\},\$$

then we have  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))/M \simeq \ell_p$ .

Note that the mapping defined in Theorem 2, T is not injective, while  $||Tx||_p = ||x||_{p,E,B(r,s)}$  for all  $x \in \ell_p(E, B(r,s))$ . Let us derive some inclusion relations concerning with the space  $\ell_p(E, B(r,s))$ .

**Result 1.** Let  $p \ge 1$  and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). If  $\sup_n |E_n| < \infty$ , then  $\ell_p \subset \ell_p(E)$ . Moreover if  $|E_n| > 1$  for an infinite number of n, then the inclusion is strict.

**Theorem 3.** Let  $p \ge 1$  and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). Then  $\ell_p(E) \subset \ell_p(E, B(r, s))$ , furthermore the inclusion is strictly holds.

Combining Lemma 1 and Theorem 3, we get the following corollary.

**Corollary 1.** Let  $p \ge 1$  and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). If  $\sup_n |E_n| < \infty$ , then  $\ell_p \subset \ell_p(E, B(r, s))$ . Moreover if  $|E_n| > 1$  for an infinite number of n, then the inclusion is strict.

**Theorem 4.** Let  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). Except the case p = 2, the space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  is not a semi-inner product space.

**Definition 1.** Let X be a semi-normed space with a semi-norm g. A sequence  $(b_n)$  of elements of the semi-normed space X is called a Schauder basis (or briefly basis) for X iff, for each  $x \in X$  there exists a unique sequence of scalars  $(\alpha_n)$  such that

$$\lim_{n \to \infty} g\left(x - \sum_{k=1}^{n} \alpha_k b_k\right) = 0.$$

The series  $\sum_{k=1}^{n} \alpha_k b_k$  which has the sum x, is then called the expansion of x with respect to  $(b_n)$  and written as  $x = \sum_{k=1}^{n} \alpha_k b_k$ . In the following, we give a sequence of points of the space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  which forms a basis for the space  $\ell_p E, B(r, s)$ .

**Theorem 5.** Let  $p \ge 1$  and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition of finite subsets of the positive integers that satisfies the condition (2). If the sequence  $b^{(k)}(r,s) = \{b_j^{(k)}(r,s)\}_{j \in \mathbb{N}}$  is defined such that

$$\sum_{j \in E_n} b_j{}^{(k)}(r,s) = \begin{cases} 0, & \text{if } n < k \\ \frac{1}{r}(-\frac{s}{r})^n, & \text{if } n \ge k \end{cases}$$

and the remaining elements are zero, for k = 1, 2, ... Then, the sequence  $\{b^{(k)}(r, s)\}_{k \in \mathbb{N}}$  is a basis for the space  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  and any  $x \in \ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  has a unique representation of the form

$$x = \sum_{k} \alpha_k b^{(k)}(r, s)$$

where  $\alpha_k = \sum_{j \in E_k} x_j$  for k = 1, 2, ...

#### 3 The Norm of Matrix Operators from $\ell_p$ into $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$

In this section, the problem of finding the norm of certain matrix operators such as Copson and Hilbert from  $\ell_p$  into  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  is considered, where  $p \ge 1$ .

**Theorem 6.** Let  $A = (a_{n,k})$  be a matrix operator and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition that satisfies condition (2). If

$$M = \sup_{k} \sum_{n=1}^{\infty} \left| \sum_{i \in E_n} ra_{i,k} + \sum_{i \in E_{n+1}} sa_{i,k} \right| < \infty,$$

then A is a bounded operator from  $\ell_1$  into  $\ell_1(E, B(r, s))$  and  $||A||_{1,E,B(r,s)} = M$ .

In particular if

$$\sum_{i \in E_n} ra_{i,k} + \sum_{i \in E_{n+1}} sa_{i,k} \ge 0$$

and r + s = 0 for all n, k, then

$$||A||_{1,E,B(r,s)} = \sup_{k} \sum_{i \in E_1} ra_{i,k}$$

The Copson operator C is defined by y = Cx, where

$$y_n = \sum_{k=n}^{\infty} \frac{x_k}{k}, (\forall n).$$

It is given by the Copson matrix:

$$c_{n,k} = \begin{cases} \frac{1}{k} , & \text{if } n \le k \\ 0 , & \text{if } n > k. \end{cases}$$

**Corollary 2.** Let C be the Copson operator and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition that satisfies condition (2). If

$$\sum_{i \in E_n} rc_{i,k} + \sum_{i \in E_{n+1}} sc_{i,k} \ge 0$$

for all n, k and r + s = 0, then C is a bounded operator from  $\ell_1$  into  $\ell_1(E, B(r, s))$  and  $||C||_{1,E,B(r,s)} = r$ .

**Corollary 3.** Suppose that C is the Copson operator,  $rc_{n,k} + sc_{n+1,k} \ge 0$  for all n, k, r+s = 0 and  $E = \{n\}$  for all n. Then C is a bounded operator from  $\ell_1$  into  $\ell_1(B(r,s))$  and  $||C||_{1,B(r,s)} = r$ .

Recall that the Hilbert operator H defined by the matrix:

$$h_{n,k} = \frac{1}{n+k}$$
 ,  $(n,k=1,2,...)$ .

**Corollary 4.** Let H be the Hilbert operator and  $E = (E_n)$  be a partition that satisfies the condition (2). If

$$\sum_{i \in E_n} rh_{i,k} + \sum_{i \in E_{n+1}} sh_{i,k} \ge 0$$

for all n, k and r + s = 0, then H is a bounded operator from  $\ell_1$  into  $\ell_1(E, B(r, s))$  and

$$||H||_{1,E,B(r,s)} = r\left(\frac{1}{2} + \dots + \frac{1}{\max E_1 + 1}\right).$$

**Corollary 5.** If H is the Hilbert operator,  $rh_{n,k} + sh_{n+1,k} \ge 0$  for all n, k and r + s = 0, then H is a bounded operator from  $\ell_1$  into  $\ell_1(E, B(r, s))$  and  $||H||_{1, B(r, s)} = \frac{r}{2}$ .

**Theorem 7.** ([12], Theorem 275) Let p > 1 and  $B = (b_{n,k})$  be a matrix operator with  $b_{n,k} \ge 0$  for all n, k. Suppose that K and R are two strictly positive numbers such that

$$\sum_{n=1}^{\infty} b_{n,k} \le K, \text{ for all } k, \qquad \sum_{k=1}^{\infty} b_{n,k} \le R \text{ for all } n,$$

(bounds for column and row sums respectively). Then

$$||B||_p \le R^{(p-1)/p} \cdot K^{1/p}$$

**Result 2.** If  $A = (a_{n,k})$  and  $B = (b_{n,k})$  are two matrix operators such that

$$b_{n,k} = \sum_{i \in E_n} ra_{i,k} + \sum_{i \in E_{n+1}} sa_{i,k}$$

then

$$||A||_{p,E,B(r,s)} = ||B||_p.$$

Hence, if B is a bounded operator on  $\ell_p$ , then A will be a bounded operator from  $\ell_p$  into  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$ .

**Theorem 8.** Let C is the Copson matrix operator p > 1, r > 0 and r + s = 0. If N is a positive integer and  $E_n = \{nN - N + 1, nN - 1,$ N + 2, ..., nN for all n, then C is a bounded operator from  $\ell_p$  into  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  and

$$\|C\|_{p,E,B(r,s)} \le r \left( N + \frac{N-1}{N+1} + \frac{N-2}{N+2} + \ldots + \frac{1}{2N-1} \right)^{\frac{(p-1)}{p}}.$$

**Theorem 9.** Suppose that p > 1, r > 0, r + s = 0, N is a positive integer and  $E_n = \{nN - N + 1, nN - N + 2, ..., nN\}$  for all n. If H is the Hilbert matrix operator, then it is a bounded operator from  $\ell_p$  into  $\ell_p(E, B(r, s))$  and

$$\|H\|_{p,E,B(r,s)} \leq r \left(\frac{1}{2} + \frac{2}{3} + \ldots + \frac{N}{N+1} + \ldots + \frac{1}{2N}\right)^{\frac{(p-1)}{p}} \left(\frac{1}{2} + \frac{1}{3} + \ldots + \frac{1}{2N}\right)^{\frac{1}{p}}.$$

#### 4 References

M. Kirişçi, F. Başar, Some new sequence spaces derived by the domain of generalized difference matrix, Comput. Math. Appl., 60 (2010), 1299-1309. [1]

- B. Altay, F. Basar, The fine spectrum and the matrix domain of the difference operator  $\Delta$  on the sequence space  $\ell_p$ , (0 , Commun. Math. Anal.,**2**(2) (2007) 1-11. F. Basar, B. Altay, On the space of sequences of p-bounded variation and related matrix mappings, Ukr. Math. J.,**55**(1) (2003), 136-147.[2]
- [3]
- F. Basar, B. Altay, M. Mursaleen, Some generalizations of the space bup of p-bounded variation sequences, Nonlinear Anal., 68(2) (2008), 273-287. M. Candan, Domain of the double sequential band matrix in the classical sequence spaces, J. Inequal. Appl., 1 (2012), 281. [4] [5]
- [6] M. Candan, E. E. Kara, A study on topological and geometrical characteristics of new Banach sequence spaces, Gulf J. Math., 3(4)(2015), 67-84.
- M. Candan, Domain of the double sequential band matrix in the spaces of convergent and nul sequences, Adv. Difference Equ., 1 (2014), 163. [7]
- [8] M. Candan, A new sequence space isomorphic to the space  $\ell(p)$  and compact operators, J. Math. Comput. Sci., 4(2) (2014), 306-334.
- [9]
- F. Basar, Summability Theory and Its Applications, Bentham Science Publishers, Istanbul, Turkey, 2012. D. Foroutannia, On the block sequence space  $\ell_p(E)$  and related matrix transformations, Turk. J. Math., **39** (2015), 830-841. [10]
- H. Roopaei, D. Foroutannia, The norm of certain matrix operators on the new difference sequence spaces I, Sahand Commun. Math. Anal., 3(1) (2016), 1-12. [11]
- [12] G. H. Hardy, J. E. Littlewood, G. Polya, *Inequalities*, 2nd edition, Cambridge University Press, Cambridge, 2001.

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 11-15

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# **Compactness of Matrix Operators on the** Banach Space $\ell_p(T)$

ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

Merve İlkhan<sup>1</sup>\* Emrah Evren Kara<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Düzce University, Düzce, Turkey, ORCID:0000-0002-0831-1474

<sup>2</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Düzce University, Düzce, Turkey, ORCID: 0000-0002-6398-4065 \* Corresponding Author E-mail: merveilkhan@duzce.edu.tr

Abstract: In this study, by using the Hausdorff measure of non-compactness, we obtain the necessary and sufficient conditions for certain matrix operators on the spaces  $\ell_p(T)$  and  $\ell_{\infty}(T)$  to be compact, where  $1 \leq p < \infty$ .

Keywords: Compact operators, Hausdorff measure of non-compactness, Sequence spaces.

#### 1 Introduction

By  $\omega$ , we denote the space of all real sequences. Any subset of  $\omega$  is called a sequence space. Let  $\Psi, \ell_{\infty}, c$  and  $c_0$  denote the sets of all finite, bounded, convergent and null sequences, respectively and  $\ell_p = \{u = (u_n) \in \omega : \sum_n |u_n|^p < \infty\}$  for  $1 \le p < \infty$ . Throughout the study, we assume that  $p, q \ge 1$  and  $\frac{1}{p} + \frac{1}{q} = 1$ .

A B-space is a complete normed space. A topological sequence space in which all coordinate functionals  $\pi_k$ ,  $\pi_k(u) = u_k$ , are continuous is called a K-space. A BK-space is defined as a K-space which is also a B-space, that is, a BK-space is a Banach space with continuous coordinates. A BK-space  $\lambda \supset \psi$  is said to have AK if every sequence  $u = (u_k) \in \lambda$  has a unique representation  $u = \sum_k u_k e^{(k)}$ , where  $e^{(k)}$  is the sequence whose only non-zero term is 1 in the nth place for each  $k \in \mathbb{N}$ . For example, the space  $\ell_p$   $(1 \le p < \infty)$  is a BK-space with the norm  $||u||_p = (\sum_k |u_k|^p)^{1/p}$  and  $c_0$  and  $\ell_\infty$  is a BK-space with the norm  $||u||_\infty = \sup_k |u_k|$ . Also, the BK-spaces  $c_0$  and  $\ell_p$  have AK but cand  $\ell_{\infty}$  do not have AK.

The  $\beta$ -dual of a sequence space  $\lambda$  is defined by

$$\lambda^{\beta} = \{ z = (z_k) \in \omega : zu = (z_k u_k) \in cs \text{ for all } u = (u_k) \in \lambda \}.$$

Let  $\mathcal{A}$  be the sequence of  $n^{\text{th}}$  row of an infinite matrix  $\mathcal{A} = (\mathfrak{a}_{nk})$  with real numbers  $\mathfrak{a}_{nk}$  for each  $n \in \mathbb{N}$ . For a sequence  $u = (u_k) \in \omega$ , the  $\mathcal{A}$ -transform of u is the sequence  $\mathcal{A}u = (\mathcal{A}_n(u))$ , where

$$\mathcal{A}_n(u) = \sum_{n=0}^{\infty} \mathfrak{a}_{nk} u_k$$

provided that the series is convergent for each  $n \in \mathbb{N}$ .

 $(\lambda, \mu)$  stands for the class of all infinite matrices from a sequence space  $\lambda$  into another sequence space  $\mu$ . Hence,  $\mathcal{A} \in (\lambda, \mu)$  if and only if  $\mathcal{A}_n \in \lambda^{\beta}$  for all  $n \in \mathbb{N}$ .

Let  $\lambda$  be a normed space and  $S_{\lambda}$  be the unit sphere in  $\lambda$ . For a BK-space  $\lambda \supset \psi$  and  $z = (z_k) \in \omega$ , we use the notation

$$\|z\|_{\lambda}^{*} = \sup_{u \in S_{\lambda}} \left| \sum_{k} z_{k} u_{k} \right|$$

under the assumption that the supremum is finite. In this case observe that  $z \in \lambda^{\beta}$ .

**Lemma 1.** [1, Theorem 1.29]  $\ell_1^{\beta} = \ell_{\infty}$ ,  $\ell_p^{\beta} = \ell_q$  and  $\ell_{\infty}^{\beta} = \ell_1$ , where  $1 . If <math>\lambda \in \{\ell_1, \ell_p, \ell_{\infty}\}$ , then  $||z||_{\lambda}^* = ||z||_{\lambda^{\beta}}$  holds for all  $z \in \lambda^{\beta}$ , where  $||.||_{\lambda^{\beta}}$  is the natural norm on  $\lambda^{\beta}$ .

By  $\mathcal{B}(\lambda, \mu)$ , we denote the set of all bounded (continuous) linear operators from  $\lambda$  to  $\mu$ .

**Lemma 2.** [1, Theorem 1.23 (a)] Let  $\lambda$  and  $\mu$  be BK-spaces. Then, for every  $\mathcal{A} \in (\lambda, \mu)$ , there exists a linear operator  $L_{\mathcal{A}} \in \mathcal{B}(\lambda, \mu)$  such that  $L_{\mathcal{A}}(u) = \mathcal{A}u$  for all  $u \in \lambda$ .

**Lemma 3.** [1] Let  $\lambda \supset \psi$  be a BK-space and  $\mu \in \{c_0, c, \ell_\infty\}$ . If  $A \in (\lambda, \mu)$ , then

$$\|L_{\mathcal{A}}\| = \|\mathcal{A}\|_{(\lambda,\mu)} = \sup_{n} \|\mathcal{A}_n\|_{\lambda}^* < \infty.$$

The Hausdorff measure of noncompactness of a bounded set Q in a metric space  $\lambda$  is defined by

$$\chi(Q) = \inf\{\varepsilon > 0 : Q \subset \bigcup_{i=1}^{n} B(x_i, r_i), x_i \in \lambda, r_i < \varepsilon, n \in \mathbb{N}\},\$$

where  $B(x_i, r_i)$  is the open ball centered at  $x_i$  and radius  $\varepsilon$  for each i = 1, 2, ..., n.

The following theorem is useful to compute the Hausdorff measure of non-compactness in  $\ell_p$  for  $1 \le p < \infty$ .

**Theorem 1.** [2] Let Q be a bounded subset in  $\ell_p$  for  $1 \le p < \infty$  and  $P_r : \ell_p \to \ell_p$  be the operator defined by  $P_r(u) = (u_0, u_1, u_2, ..., u_r, 0, 0, ...)$  for all  $u = (u_k) \in \ell_p$  and each  $r \in \mathbb{N}$ . Then, we have

$$\chi(Q) = \lim_{r} \left( \sup_{u \in Q} \| (I - P_r)(u) \|_{\ell_p} \right),$$

where I is the identity operator on  $\ell_p$ .

Let  $\lambda$  and  $\mu$  be Banach spaces. Then, a linear operator  $L : \lambda \to \mu$  is is said to be compact if the domain of L is all of  $\lambda$  and L(Q) is a totally bounded subset of  $\mu$  for every bounded subset Q in  $\lambda$ . Equivalently, we say that L is compact if its domain is all of  $\lambda$  and for every bounded sequence  $u = (u_n)$  in  $\lambda$ , the sequence  $(L(u_n))$  has a convergent subsequence in  $\mu$ .

The idea of compact operators between Banach spaces is closely related to the Hausdorff measure of non-compactness. For  $L \in \mathcal{B}(\lambda, \mu)$ , the Hausdorff measure of non-compactness of L denoted by  $\|L\|_{\chi}$  is given by

$$||L||_{\chi} = \chi(L(S_{\lambda}))$$

and we have

#### *L* is compact if and only if $||L||_{\chi} = 0$ .

Several authors have studied compact operators on the sequence spaces and given very important results related to the Hausdorff measure of non-compactness of a linear operator. For example [3]-[9].

The main purpose of this study is to obtain necessary and sufficient conditions for some matrix operators to be compact. For this purpose, we use the Banach spaces  $\ell_p(T)$  and  $\ell_{\infty}(T)$  introduced in [10] as

$$\ell_p(T) = \left\{ u = (u_n) \in \omega : \sum_n \left| t_n u_n - \frac{1}{t_n} u_{n-1} \right|^p < \infty \right\} \quad (1 \le p < \infty)$$

and

$$\ell_{\infty}(T) = \left\{ u = (u_n) \in \omega : \sup_{n} \left| t_n u_n - \frac{1}{t_n} u_{n-1} \right| < \infty \right\}.$$

Here, the difference matrix matrix  $T = (t_{nk})$  is defined by

$$t_{nk} = \begin{cases} t_n & , \quad k = n \\ -\frac{1}{t_n} & , \quad k = n - 1 \\ 0 & , \quad k > n \text{ or } 0 \le k < n - 1, \end{cases}$$

where  $t_n > 0$  for all  $n \in \mathbb{N}$  and  $t = (t_n) \in c \setminus c_0$ .

Note that we use the sequence  $v = (v_n)$  for the T-transform of a sequence  $u = (u_n)$ , that is,

$$v_n = T_n(u) = \begin{cases} t_0 u_0 &, n = 0\\ t_n u_n - \frac{1}{t_n} u_{n-1} &, n \ge 1 \end{cases} \quad (n \in \mathbb{N}).$$

#### 2 Compact Operators on the Spaces $\ell_p(T)$ and $\ell_{\infty}(T)$

For a sequence  $a = (a_k) \in \omega$ , we define a sequence  $\tilde{a} = (\tilde{a}_k)$  as  $\tilde{a}_k = \sum_{j=k}^{\infty} t_k \prod_{i=k}^{j} \frac{1}{t_i^2} a_j$  for all  $k \in \mathbb{N}$ . We need the following results in the sequel.

**Lemma 4.** Let  $a = (a_k) \in (\ell_p(T))^{\beta}$ , where  $1 \le p \le \infty$ . Then  $\tilde{a} = (\tilde{a}_k) \in \ell_q$  and

$$\sum_{k} a_k u_k = \sum_{k} \tilde{a}_k v_k \tag{1}$$

for all  $u = (u_k) \in \ell_p(T)$ .

Lemma 5. The following statements hold.

 $\begin{aligned} &(a) \|a\|_{\ell_{1}(T)}^{*} = \sup_{k} |\tilde{a}_{k}| < \infty \text{ for all } a = (a_{k}) \in (\ell_{1}(T))^{\beta}. \\ &(b) \|a\|_{\ell_{p}(T)}^{*} = \left(\sum_{k} |\tilde{a}_{k}|^{q}\right)^{1/q} < \infty \text{ for all } a = (a_{k}) \in (\ell_{p}(T))^{\beta}, \text{ where } 1 \le p \le \infty. \\ &(c) \|a\|_{\ell_{\infty}(T)}^{*} = \sum_{k} |\tilde{a}_{k}| < \infty \text{ for all } a = (a_{k}) \in (\ell_{\infty}(T))^{\beta}. \end{aligned}$ 

*Proof:* We only prove part (a) and the others can be proved analogously. Choose  $a = (a_k) \in (\ell_1(T))^{\beta}$ . Then, by Lemma 4, we have  $\tilde{a} = (\tilde{a}_k) \in \ell_{\infty}$  and (1) holds. Since  $\|u\|_{\ell_1(T)} = \|v\|_{\ell_1}$  holds, we obtain that  $u \in S_{\ell_1(T)}$  if and only if  $v \in S_{\ell_1}$ . Hence, we deduce that  $\|a\|_{\ell_1(T)}^* = \sup_{u \in S_{\ell_1(T)}} |\sum_k a_k u_k| = \sup_{v \in S_{\ell_1}} |\sum_k \tilde{a}_k v_k| = \|\tilde{a}\|_{\ell_1}^*$ . From Lemma 1, it follows that  $\|a\|_{\ell_1(T)}^* = \|\tilde{a}\|_{\ell_1}^* = \|\tilde{a}\|_{\ell_{\infty}} = \sup_k |\tilde{a}_k|$ .  $\Box$ 

Throughout this section, we use the matrix  $\tilde{A} = (\tilde{a}_{nk})$  defined by an infinite matrix  $A = (a_{nk})$  via

$$\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} = \sum_{j=k}^{\infty} t_k \prod_{i=k}^{j} \frac{1}{t_i^2} \mathfrak{a}_{nj}$$

for all  $n, k \in \mathbb{N}$  under the assumption that the series is convergent.

**Lemma 6.** Let  $\lambda$  be a sequence space. If  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), \lambda)$ , then  $\tilde{\mathcal{A}} \in (\ell_p, \lambda)$  and  $\mathcal{A}u = \tilde{\mathcal{A}}v$  for all  $u \in \ell_p(T)$ , where  $1 \le p \le \infty$ .

**Lemma 7.** If  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), \ell_p)$ , then we have

$$\|L_{\mathcal{A}}\| = \|\mathcal{A}\|_{(\ell_1(T),\ell_p)} = \sup_k \left(\sum_n |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|^p\right)^{1/p} < \infty,$$

where  $1 \leq p \leq \infty$ .

**Lemma 8.** [11, Theorem 3.7] Let  $\lambda \supset \psi$  be a BK-space. Then, the following statements hold. (a)  $\mathcal{A} \in (\lambda, \ell_{\infty})$ , then  $0 \leq \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \leq \limsup_{n} \|\mathcal{A}_{n}\|_{\lambda}^{*}$ . (b)  $\mathcal{A} \in (\lambda, c_{0})$ , then  $\|\mathcal{A}_{S}\|_{\chi} \leq \limsup_{n} \|\mathcal{A}_{n}\|_{\lambda}^{*}$ . (c) If  $\lambda$  has AK or  $\lambda = \ell_{\infty}$  and  $\mathcal{A} \in (\lambda, c)$ , then

$$\frac{1}{2}\limsup_{n} \|\mathcal{A}_{n} - \alpha\|_{\lambda}^{*} \leq \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \leq \limsup_{n} \|\mathcal{A}_{n} - \alpha\|_{\lambda}^{*}$$

where  $\alpha = (\alpha_k)$  and  $\alpha_k = \lim_n \mathfrak{a}_{nk}$  for all  $k \in \mathbb{N}$ .

#### Theorem 2.

1. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), \ell_\infty)$ ,

$$0 \le \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \le \limsup_{n} \left( \sup_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}| \right)$$

holds. 2. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), c)$ ,

$$\frac{1}{2}\limsup_{n} \left( \sup_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} - \tilde{\alpha}_{k}| \right) \le \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \le \limsup_{n} \left( \sup_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} - \tilde{\alpha}_{k}| \right)$$

holds. 3. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), c_0)$ ,

$$||L_{\mathcal{A}}||_{\chi} = \limsup_{n} \left( \sup_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}| \right)$$

holds. 4. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), \ell_1)$ ,

$$||L_{\mathcal{A}}||_{\chi} = \lim_{m} \left( \sup_{k} \sum_{n=m}^{\infty} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}| \right)$$

holds.

#### **Corollary 1.**

1.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), \ell_{\infty})$  if

$$\lim_{n} \left( \sup_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}| \right) = 0.$$

2.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), c)$ , if and only if

$$\lim_{n} \left( \sup_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} - \tilde{\alpha}_{k}| \right) = 0.$$

3.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), c_0)$  if and only if

$$\lim_{n} \left( \sup_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}| \right) = 0$$

4.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_1(T), \ell_1)$  if and only if

$$\lim_{m} \left( \sup_{k} \sum_{n=m}^{\infty} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}| \right) = 0.$$

**Lemma 9.** Let  $\lambda \supset \psi$  be a BK-space. If  $\mathcal{A} \in (\lambda, \ell_1)$ , then

$$\lim_{r} \left( \sup_{N \in \mathcal{K}_{r}} \left\| \sum_{n \in N} \mathcal{A}_{n} \right\|_{\lambda}^{*} \right) \leq \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\lambda} \leq 4 \lim_{r} \left( \sup_{N \in \mathcal{K}_{r}} \left\| \sum_{n \in N} \mathcal{A}_{n} \right\|_{\lambda}^{*} \right)$$

and  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact if and only if  $\lim_{r} \left( \sup_{N \in \mathcal{K}_{r}} \|\sum_{n \in N} \mathcal{A}_{n}\|_{\lambda}^{*} \right) = 0$ , where  $\mathcal{K}_{r}$  is the subcollection of  $\mathcal{K}$  consisting of subsets of  $\mathbb{N}$  with elements that are greater than r.

**Theorem 3.** Let 1 .

1. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), \ell_\infty)$ ,

$$0 \le \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \le \limsup_{n} \left(\sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|^{q}\right)^{1/q}$$

holds. 2. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), c)$ ,

$$\frac{1}{2}\limsup_{n} \left(\sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} - \tilde{\alpha}_{k}|^{q}\right)^{1/q} \le \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \le \limsup_{n} \left(\sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} - \tilde{\alpha}_{k}|^{q}\right)^{1/q}$$

holds.

3. *For*  $A \in (\ell_p(T), c_0)$ ,

$$||L_{\mathcal{A}}||_{\chi} = \limsup_{n} \left( \sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|^{q} \right)^{1/q}$$

holds. 4. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), \ell_1)$ ,

$$\lim_{m} \|\mathcal{A}\|_{(\ell_p(T),\ell_1)}^{(m)} \le \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \le 4 \lim_{m} \|\mathcal{A}\|_{(\ell_p(T),\ell_1)}^{(m)}$$

holds, where  $\|\mathcal{A}\|_{(\ell_p(T),\ell_1)}^{(m)} = \sup_{N \in \mathcal{K}_m} \left( \sum_k |\sum_{n \in N} \tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|^q \right)^{1/q}$ .

**Corollary 2.** Let 1 .

1.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), \ell_{\infty})$  if

$$\lim_{n} \left( \sum_{k} \left| \tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} \right|^{q} \right)^{1/q} = 0.$$

2.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), c)$  if and only if

$$\lim_{n} \left( \sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk} - \tilde{\alpha}_{k}|^{q} \right)^{1/q} = 0.$$

3.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), c_0)$  if and only if

$$\lim_{n} \left( \sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|^{q} \right)^{1/q} = 0.$$

4.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_p(T), \ell_1)$  if and only if

$$\lim_{m} \|\mathcal{A}\|_{(\ell_{p}(T),\ell_{1})}^{(m)} = 0,$$

where  $\|\mathcal{A}\|_{(\ell_p(T),\ell_1)}^{(m)} = \sup_{N \in \mathcal{K}_m} \left( \sum_k |\sum_{n \in N} \tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|^q \right)^{1/q}$ .

#### Theorem 4.

1. For 
$$\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_{\infty}(T), \ell_{\infty})$$

$$0 \le \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \le \limsup_{n} \sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|$$

holds. 2. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_{\infty}(T), c)$ ,

$$\frac{1}{2}\limsup_{n}\sum_{k}|\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}-\tilde{\alpha}_{k}| \leq \|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} \leq \limsup_{n}\sum_{k}|\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}-\tilde{\alpha}_{k}|$$

holds. 3. For  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_{\infty}(T), c_0)$ ,

$$\|L_{\mathcal{A}}\|_{\chi} = \limsup_{n} \sum_{k} |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|$$

holds.

#### **Corollary 3.**

1.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_{\infty}(T), \ell_{\infty})$  if

$$\lim_{n}\sum_{k}|\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}|=0$$

2.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_{\infty}(T), c)$ , if and only if

$$\lim_{n}\sum_{k}|\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}-\tilde{\alpha}_{k}|=0.$$

3.  $L_{\mathcal{A}}$  is compact for  $\mathcal{A} \in (\ell_{\infty}(T), c_0)$  if and only if

$$\lim_n \sum_k |\tilde{\mathfrak{a}}_{nk}| = 0.$$

#### 3 References

- E. Malkowsky, V. Rakocevic, An introduction into the theory of sequence spaces and measure of noncompactness, Zbornik radova, Matematicki Inst. SANU, Belgrade, 9(17) [1] (2000), 143–234. V. Rakocevic, *Measures of noncompactness and some applications*, Filomat, **12**(2) (1998), 87–120.
- [2]
- M. Başarır, E. E. Kara, On compact operators on the Riesz B(m)-difference sequence spaces, Iran. J. Sci. Technol., 35(A4) (2011), 279–285. [3]
- M. Başarır, E. E. Kara, On some difference sequence spaces of weighted means and compact operators, Ann. Funct. Anal., 2 (2011), 114-129. [4]
- [5] M. Başarır, E. E. Kara, On the B-difference sequence space derived by generalized weighted mean and compact operators, J. Math. Anal. Appl., 391 (2012), 67-81.
- [6] M. Mursaleen, V. Karakaya, H. Polat, N. Şimşek, Measure of noncompactness of matrix operators on some difference sequence spaces of weighted means, Comput. Math. Appl., **62** (2011), 814–820.
- [7] M. Mursaleen, S. A. Mohiuddine, Applications of measures of noncompactness to the infinite system of differential equations in  $\ell_p$  spaces, Nonlinear Anal., 75 (2012), 2111– 2115.
- [8] M. Mursaleen, A. K. Noman, Applications of Hausdorff measure of noncompactness in the spaces of generalized means, Math. Inequal. Appl., 16(1) (2013), 207–220.
- [9] M. Mursaleen, A. K. Noman, The Hausdorff measure of noncompactness of matrix operators on some BK spaces, Oper. Matrices, 5(3) (2011), 473-486.
- [10] E. E. Kara, M. İlkhan, On some Banach sequence spaces derived by a new band matrix, Br. J. Math. Comput. Sci. 9(2) (2015), 141–159.
   [11] M. Mursaleen, A. K. Noman, Compactness by the Hausdorff measure of noncompactness, Nonlinear Anal., 73(8) (2010), 2541–2557.

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 16-19

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# Helicoidal Surfaces Which Have the Timelike Axis in Minkowski Space with Density

Önder Gökmen Yıldız<sup>1,\*</sup> Mahmut Ergüt<sup>2</sup> Mahmut Akviğit<sup>3</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Bilecik Şeyh Edebali University, Bilecik, Turkey. ORCID: 0000-0002-2760-1223

<sup>2</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Namık Kemal University, Tekirdağ, Turkey. ORCID: 0000-0002-9098-8280

<sup>3</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey. ORCID: 0000-0002-8398-365X

\* Corresponding Author E-mail: ogokmen.vildiz@bilecik.edu.tr

Abstract: In this paper, we study the prescribed curvature problem in manifold with density. We consider the Minkowski 3-space with a positive density function. For a given plane curve and an axis in the plane in Minkowski 3-space, a helicoidal surface can be constructed by the plane curve under helicoidal motions around the axis. Also we give examples of helicoidal surface with weighted Gaussian curvature.

Keywords: Helicoidal, Manifold with density, Minkowski space, Weighted curvature.

#### 1 Introduction

Helicoidal surface is a natural generalization of a rotation surface. A few works have been done with helicoidal surfaces under some given certain conditions [1–4]. Recently, the popular question is whether a helicoidal surface can be constructed when its curvatures are prescribed. Several researchers worked on this problem and obtained useful results. Firstly, Baikoussis et. al have studied helicoidal surfaces with prescribed mean and Gaussian curvature in  $\mathbb{R}^3$  [5]. Then, Beneki et. al [6] and Ji et. al [7] have studied the similar work in  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$ . This problem is extended to manifolds with density. Helicoidal surfaces with prescribed mean and Gaussian curvature in  $\mathbb{R}^3$  with density have been studied by Dae Won Yoon et. al [8]. Furthermore, Yıldız et. al have constructed the type  $I^+$  helicoidal surfaces with prescribed weighted curvatures in  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$  with density [9]

A manifold with a positive density function  $\psi$  used to weight the volume and the hypersurface area. In terms of the underlying Riemannian volume  $dV_0$  and area  $dA_0$ , the new, weighted volume and area are given by  $dV = \psi dV_0$  and  $dA = \psi dA_0$ , respectively. One of the most important examples of manifolds with density, with applications to probability and statistics, is Gauss space with density  $\psi = e^{a(-x^2-y^2-z^2)}$ for  $a \in \mathbb{R}$ ,  $(x, y, z) \in \mathbb{R}^3$  [10]. For more details on manifolds with density, see [10–16].

In the Minkowski 3-space with density  $e^{\varphi}$ , the weighted Gaussian curvature is given with

$$G_{\varphi} = G - \bigtriangleup \varphi$$

where G is the Gaussian curvature of the surface and  $\triangle$  is the Laplacian operator [17].

In this paper, we study helicoidal surfaces which have the timelike axis in the Minkowski 3-space  $R_1^3$  with density  $e^{\varphi}$ , where  $\varphi = x^2$ . Firstly, we construct a helicodial surface with prescribed weighted Gaussian curvature. Finally, we give examples to illustrate.

#### 2 **Preliminaries**

The Minkowski 3–space  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$  is the real vector space  $\mathbb{R}^3$  provided with the standart flat metric given by

$$ds^2 = -dx^2 + dy^2 + dz^2$$

where (x, y, z) is a rectangular coordinate system of  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$ . For a given plane curve and an axis in the plane in  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$ , a helicoidal surface can be constructed by the plane curve under helicoidal motions  $g_t$ :  $\mathbb{R}^3_1 \to \mathbb{R}^3_1, t \in \mathbb{R}$  around the axis. So, a helicoidal surface is non-degenerate and invariant under  $g_t, t \in \mathbb{R}$  for which one parameter subgroup of rigid motions is in  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$ . There exist four kinds of helicoidal surfaces in  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$  which are defined by Beneki et. al [6] and these are called type I, type II, type III, type IV. In this study, type  $III^+$  is considered which has the timelike axis of revolution and the profile curve in xy-plane. In addition, the helicoidal surface is called type  $III^+$  since the discriminant of the first fundamental form  $u^2 \left(1 - g'^2\right) - c^2$  is positive [6].

16



ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

Let  $\gamma$  be a  $C^2$ -curve on xy-plane of type  $\gamma(u) = (g(u), u, 0)$  where  $u \in I$  for an open interval  $I \subset \mathbb{R} - \{0\}$ . By using helicoidal motion on  $\gamma$ , we can obtain the helicoidal as

$$X(u,v) = \begin{bmatrix} 1 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & \cos v & -\sin v \\ 0 & \sin v & \cos v \end{bmatrix} \begin{bmatrix} g(u) \\ u \\ 0 \end{bmatrix} + \begin{bmatrix} cv \\ 0 \\ 0 \end{bmatrix}$$

with x-axis and a pitch  $c \in \mathbb{R}$ . So the parametric equation can be given in the form

$$X(u, v) = (g(u) + cv, u\cos v, u\sin v).$$

It is straightforward to see that the Gaussian curvature G is

$$G = \frac{u^3 g' g'' - c^2}{\left[u^2 \left(1 - g'^2\right) - c^2\right]^2}$$

where  $u^2 (1 - g'^2) - c^2 > 0$  [6]. We assume that M is the surface in  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$  with density  $e^{\varphi}$ , where  $\varphi = x^2$ . By considering density function, we can calculate the weighted Gaussian curvature  $G_{\varphi}$  as

$$G_{\varphi} = \frac{u^3 g' g'' - c^2}{\left(u^2 \left(1 - g'^2\right) - c^2\right)^2} - 2. \tag{1}$$

#### 3 Helicoidal Surfaces with Prescribed Gaussian Curvature

Let's solve the ordinary differential equation (1), which is second-order nonlinear ordinary differantial equation. If we take

$$\Psi = \frac{-u^2 g'^2 - c^2}{\left(u^2 \left(1 - g'^2\right) - c^2\right)} \tag{2}$$

then we obtain

equivalently,

$$G_{\varphi} = -\frac{1}{2u}\Psi' - 2$$

$$\Psi' = -2uG_{\varphi} - 4u.$$
(3)

The general solution of the equation (3) becomes

$$\Psi = -2u^2 - 2\int uG_{\varphi}du + c_1 \tag{4}$$

where  $c_1 \in \mathbb{R}$ . Combining the equation (2) and the equation (4), we get

$$u^{2}\left(-1-2u^{2}-2\int uG_{\varphi}du+c_{1}\right){g'}^{2}(u)=\left(u^{2}-c^{2}\right)\left(-2u^{2}-2\int uG_{\varphi}du+c_{1}\right)+c^{2}.$$

It follows that

$$g(u) = \mp \int \frac{1}{u} \left[ \frac{\left(u^2 - c^2\right) \left(-2u^2 - 2 \int u G_{\varphi} du + c_1\right) + c^2}{-1 - 2u^2 - 2 \int u G_{\varphi} du + c_1} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}} du + c_2$$
(5)

where  $c_2 \in \mathbb{R}$ .

Conversely, for a given  $c \in \mathbb{R}$  and a smooth function  $G_{\varphi}(u)$  defined on an open interval  $I \subset \mathbb{R}^+$  and an arbitrary  $u_0 \in I$ , there exists an open subinterval  $I' \subset I$  containing  $u_0$  and an open interval  $J \subset \mathbb{R}$  containing

$$\hat{c}_1 = \left(2 + 2u^2 + 2\int uG_{\varphi}du\right)(u_0)$$

such that

$$F(u, c_1) = -1 - 2u^2 - 2\int uG_{\varphi}du > 0$$

is defined on  $I' \times J$  and it is easily seen F is positive. Thus, two-parameter family of the curves can be given as

$$\gamma(u, G_{\varphi}(u), c, c_1, c_2) = \left(\mp \int \frac{1}{u} \left[ \frac{(u^2 - c^2) \left(-2u^2 - 2 \int u G_{\varphi} du + c_1\right) + c^2}{-1 - 2u^2 - 2 \int u G_{\varphi} du + c_1} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}} du + c_2, u, 0 \right)$$

where  $(u, c_1) \in I' \times J$ ;  $c_2 \in \mathbb{R}$ ,  $c \in \mathbb{R}$  and  $G_{\varphi}$  is smooth function.

Therefore, we have proved the following theorem.

**Theorem 1.** Let  $\gamma(u)$  be a profile curve of the helicoidal surface given with  $X(u,v) = (g(u) + cv, u \cos v, u \sin v)$  in  $\mathbb{R}^3_1$  with density  $e^{x^2}$  and  $G_{\varphi}(u)$  be the weighted Gaussian curvature at (g(u), u, 0). Then, there exists two-parameter family of the helicoidal surface given by the curves

$$\gamma(u, G_{\varphi}(u), c, c_1, c_2) = \left(\mp \int \frac{1}{u} \left[ \frac{(u^2 - c^2) \left(4u^2 - 2 \int u G_{\varphi} du + c_1\right) + c^2}{-1 + 4u^2 - 2 \int u G_{\varphi} du + c_1} \right]^{\frac{1}{2}} du + c_2, u, 0 \right)$$

here,  $c_1$  and  $c_2$  are constants. Conversely, for a given smooth function  $G_{\varphi}(u)$ , one can obtain the two-parameter family of curves  $\gamma(u, G_{\varphi}(u), c, c_1, c_2)$  being the two-parameter family of helicoidal surfaces, accepting  $G_{\varphi}(u)$  as the weighted Gaussian curvature c as a pitch.

Example Consider a helicoidal surface with the weighted Gaussian curvature

$$G_{\varphi}(u) = -\frac{8}{15} - \frac{u^2}{3} + \frac{\arctan\left(\sqrt{15}u\right)}{30\sqrt{15}u}$$

in  $R_1^3$  with density  $e^{x^2}$ . By using the equation (5), we obtain

$$g\left(u\right) = 4u$$

for  $c = 1, c_1 = 0, c_2 = 0$  and the parametrization of the surface as follows

$$X(u,v) = (4u + v, u\cos v, u\sin v).$$

The figure of the surface of the domain

$$\begin{cases} 2 < u < 5 \\ -10 < v < 10 \end{cases}$$

is given in Figure 1.



Fig. 1: The helicoidal surface with the weighted Gaussian curvature

#### 4 References

- [1] C. Baba-Hamed, M. Bekkar, Helicoidal surfaces in the three-dimensional Lorentz-Minkowski space satisfying  $\Delta^{II}r_i = \lambda_i r_i$ , J. Geom., 100(1-2) (2011), 1.
- [2] M. P. Do Carmo, M. Dajczer, Helicoidal surfaces with constant mean curvature, Tohoku Math. J., Second Series, 34(3) (1982), 425-435.

- L. Rafael, E. Demir, *Helicoidal surfaces in Minkowski space with constant mean curvature and constant Gauss curvature*, Open Math., **12**(9) (2014), 1349-1361.
   I. M. Roussos, *The helicoidal surfaces as Bonnet surfaces*. Tohoku Math. J., Second Series, **40**(3) (1988), 485-490.
   C. Baikoussis, T. Koufogiorgos, *Helicoidal surfaces with prescribed mean or Gaussian curvature*, J. Geom., **63**(1) (1998), 25-29.

- C. C. Beneki, G. Kaimakamis, B.J. Papantoniou, Helicoidal surfaces in three-dimensional Minkowski space, J. Math. Anal. Appl., 275(2) (2002), 586-614. [6] [7] F. Ji, Z. H. Hou, A kind of helicoidal surfaces in 3-dimensional Minkowski space, J. Math. Anal. Appl., 304(2) (2005), 632-643.
- [8]
- D. W. Yoon, D. S. Kim, Y.H. Kim, J.W. Lee, Constructions of helicoidal surfaces in Euclidean space with density, Symmetry, **9**(9) (2017), 173. Ö. G. Yıldız, S. Hızal, M. Akyiğit, Type I<sup>+</sup> Helicoidal surfaces with prescribed weighted mean or Gaussian curvature in Minkowski space with density, An. Stiint. Univ. Ovidius Constant a, Seria Mat., **26**(3) (2018), 99-108. [9]
- F. Morgan, Manifolds with Density and Perelman's Proof of the Poincaré Conjecture, Amer. Math. Monthly, **116**(2) (2009), 134-142. D. T. Hıeu, N.M. Hoang, Ruled minimal surfaces in  $\mathbb{R}^3$  with density  $e^z$ , Pacific J. Math., **243**(2) (2009), 277-285. [10]
- [11]
- [12] F. Morgan, Geometric measure theory: a beginner's guide, Academic press, 2016.
- [13] F. Morgan, Manifolds with density, Notices of the AMS, (2005), 853-858.
- [14] F. Morgan, Myers' theorem with density, Kodai Math. J., 29(3) (2006), 455-461.
  [15] P. Rayon, M. Gromov, Isoperimetry of waists and concentration of maps, Geom. Funct. Anal., 13(1) (2003), 178-215.
  [16] C. Rosales, A. Cañete, V. Bayle, M. Morgan, On the isoperimetric problem in Euclidean space with density, Calc. Var. Partial Differ. Equ., 31(1) (2008), 27-46.
- [17] I. Corwin, N. Hoffman, S. Hurder, V. Šešum, Y. Xu, Differential geometry of manifolds with density, Rose-Hulman Undergrad. Math. J., 7 (2006), 1-15.

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 20-27

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# **Further Results for Elliptic Biquaternions**

Kahraman Esen Özen<sup>1,\*</sup>, Murat Tosun<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey.

ORCID: 0000-0002-3299-6709

<sup>2</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey.

ORCID: 0000-0002-4888-1412

\* Corresponding Author E-mail: kahraman.ozen1@ogr.sakarya.edu.tr

**Abstract:** In this study, we show that the elliptic biquaternion algebra is algebraically isomorphic to the  $2 \times 2$  total elliptic matrix algebra and so, we get a faithful  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix representation of an elliptic biquaternion. Also, we investigate the similarity and the Moore-Penrose inverses of elliptic biquaternions by means of these matrix representations. Moreover, we establish universal similarity factorization equality (USFE) over the elliptic biquaternion algebra which reveals a deeper relationship between an elliptic biquaternion and its elliptic matrix representation. This equality and these representations can serve as useful tools for discussing many problems concerned with the elliptic biquaternions, especially for solving various elliptic biquaternion equations.

Keywords: Elliptic biquaternion, Generalized inverse, matrix representation, Universal similarity factorization equality.

#### 1 Introduction

Sir W. R. Hamilton introduced the set of quaternions in 1843 [1], that was one of the his best contribution made to mathematical science. The set of quaternions can be represented as

$$H = \{q = q_0 + q_1 \mathbf{i} + q_2 \mathbf{j} + q_3 \mathbf{k} : q_0, q_1, q_2, q_3 \in \mathbb{R}\}\$$

where the quaternion bases 1, i, j and k satisfy the multiplication laws

$$i^{2} = j^{2} = k^{2} = -1$$
,  $ij = -ji = k$ ,  $jk = -kj = i$ ,  $ki = -ik = j$ .

W.R. Hamilton introduced complex quaternion algebra ten years later from discovery of quaternions, in 1853 [2]. The set of complex quaternions is defined by

$$H_{\mathbb{C}} = \{ Q = Q_0 + Q_1 \mathbf{i} + Q_2 \mathbf{j} + Q_3 \mathbf{k} : Q_0, Q_1, Q_2, Q_3 \in \mathbb{C} \}$$

where 1,  $\mathbf{i}$ ,  $\mathbf{j}$  and  $\mathbf{k}$  are exactly the same in quaternions. There can be found some studies related to quaternions in [3–10].

A fundamental fact (see e.g., [3–6]) is that complex quaternion algebra is isomorphic to the  $2 \times 2$  total complex matrix algebra  $M_2(\mathbb{C})$  by means of the isomorphism

$$\psi: H_{\mathbb{C}} \to M_2(\mathbb{C}), \quad \psi\left(a_o + a_1\mathbf{i} + a_2\mathbf{j} + a_3\mathbf{k}\right) = \begin{bmatrix} a_o + a_1i & -a_2 - a_3i \\ a_2 - a_3i & a_o - a_1i \end{bmatrix}.$$

Based on this isomorphism, any complex quaternion  $x \in H_{\mathbb{C}}$  has a faithful complex matrix representation  $\psi(x) \in M_2(\mathbb{C})$ .

USFE over an algebra can serve as a precious material for investigating various problems concerned with this algebra and their applications. There can be found some studies which include USFE over various algebras in [11-15].

Recently, we have introduced the set of elliptic biquaternions and presented various studies related to elliptic biquaternions. We refer the readers to [16–20].

This article is organized as follows. In section 2, we recall the fundamental concepts of elliptic matrices and review the elliptic biquaternions and their matrices to disambiguate the ensuing sections. In section 3,  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix representations of elliptic biquaternions are introduced. In section 4, the similarity of elliptic biquaternions is investigated and USFE for elliptic biquaternions is established. In section 5, the Moore-Penrose inverses of elliptic biquaternions are discussed with the aid of their aforementioned matrix representations.

Throughout this paper, the following notations are used.  $\mathbb{C}$ ,  $\mathbb{C}_p$ ,  $H\mathbb{C}_p$ ,  $M_{m \times n}(\mathbb{C})$ ,  $M_{m \times n}(\mathbb{C}_p)$  and  $M_{m \times n}(H\mathbb{C}_p)$  denote the complex number field, the elliptic number field, the elliptic biquaternion algebra, the set of all  $m \times n$  complex matrices, the set of all  $m \times n$  elliptic matrices and the set of all  $m \times n$  elliptic biquaternion matrices, respectively. For convenience, the set of all square matrices on  $\mathbb{C}_p$  is denoted by  $M_n(\mathbb{C}_p)$ .

ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

#### 2 **Preliminaries**

In this section, we recall some necessary properties of elliptic matrices. Also, we give some notions about elliptic biquaternions and their matrices. For more details see [16, 20, 21].

In the set of elliptic matrices  $M_{m \times n}$  ( $\mathbb{C}_p$ ) including  $m \times n$  matrices with elliptic number entries, the scalar multiplication is defined as

$$\lambda A = \lambda \left[ a_{ij} \right] = \left[ \lambda a_{ij} \right] \in M_{m \times n} \left( \mathbb{C}_p \right)$$

where  $\lambda \in \mathbb{C}_p$  and  $A = [a_{ij}] \in M_{m \times n}(\mathbb{C}_p)$ . Also, the ordinary matrix addition and multiplication are defined in this set. Let an elliptic matrix  $A = [a_{ij}] \in M_{m \times n} (\mathbb{C}_p)$  be given. In that case, the complex conjugate of A is defined as  $\overline{A} = [a_{ij}^*] \in M_{m \times n} (\mathbb{C}_p)$  where  $a_{ij}^*$  is the usual complex conjugation of  $a_{ij} \in \mathbb{C}_p$ . Also, the conjugate transpose of A is defined as  $A^* = (\overline{A})^T \in M_{n \times m} (\mathbb{C}_p)$ . On the other hand, the square elliptic matrices A and B with the same dimension over  $\mathbb{C}_p$  are said to be similar, if there exists an invertible elliptic matrix P satisfying  $P^{-1}AP = B$ , [21].

The set of elliptic biquaternions is represented as

$$H\mathbb{C}_p = \{Q = A_0 + A_1\mathbf{i} + A_2\mathbf{j} + A_3\mathbf{k} : A_0, A_1, A_2, A_3 \in \mathbb{C}_p\}$$

where **i**, **j** and **k** are the quaternionic units which satisfy

$$i^{2} = j^{2} = k^{2} = -1$$
,  $ij = -ji = k$ ,  $jk = -kj = i$ ,  $ki = -ik = j$ .

The operations of addition, multiplication and scalar multiplication are given as

$$\begin{aligned} Q+R &= (A_0+B_0) + (A_1+B_1) \mathbf{i} + (A_2+B_2) \mathbf{j} + (A_3+B_3) \mathbf{k} \\ QR &= [(A_0B_0) - (A_1B_1) - (A_2B_2) - (A_3B_3)] \\ &+ [(A_0B_1) + (A_1B_0) + (A_2B_3) - (A_3B_2)] \mathbf{i} \\ &+ [(A_0B_2) - (A_1B_3) + (A_2B_0) + (A_3B_1)] \mathbf{j} \\ &+ [(A_0B_3) + (A_1B_2) - (A_2B_1) + (A_3B_0)] \mathbf{k} \\ \lambda Q &= (\lambda A_0) + (\lambda A_1) \mathbf{i} + (\lambda A_2) \mathbf{j} + (\lambda A_3) \mathbf{k} \end{aligned}$$

where  $\lambda \in \mathbb{C}_p$  and  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k}$ ,  $R = B_0 + B_1 \mathbf{i} + B_2 \mathbf{j} + B_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$ . Also, the following equations

$$Q^{*} = A_{0}^{*} + A_{1}^{*}\mathbf{i} + A_{2}^{*}\mathbf{j} + A_{3}^{*}\mathbf{k}$$
$$\overline{Q} = A_{0} - A_{1}\mathbf{i} - A_{2}\mathbf{j} - A_{3}\mathbf{k}$$
$$Q^{\dagger} = (\overline{Q})^{*} = A_{0}^{*} - A_{1}^{*}\mathbf{i} - A_{2}^{*}\mathbf{j} - A_{3}^{*}\mathbf{k}$$

state the complex conjugate, quaternion conjugate and Hermitian conjugate of Q, respectively. Here the stars given as superscript on  $A_0, A_1, A_2$  and  $A_3$  indicate the usual complex conjugation. If  $Q^{\dagger} = Q, Q$  is said to be Hermitian, [16].

As can be seen easily, the meanings of the symbols; star and dagger given as superscript and over bar vary according to terms which they are applied to. We need to warn the readers about these cases for the rest of the paper.

Another thing that can be of importance is the inner product of two elliptic biquaternions. The inner product of Q and R is defined in the following way:

$$\langle Q, R \rangle = \frac{1}{2} \left( \overline{Q}R + \overline{R}Q \right) = \frac{1}{2} \left( Q\overline{R} + R\overline{Q} \right) = A_0 B_0 + A_1 B_1 + A_2 B_2 + A_3 B_3.$$

On the other hand, the semi-norm of Q is expressed as follows:

$$N_Q = \langle Q, Q \rangle = A_0^2 + A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2 = Q \,\overline{Q} = \overline{Q} \,Q \in \mathbb{C}_p.$$

When  $N_Q \neq 0$ , Q has a multiplicative inverse such that  $Q^{-1} = \overline{Q}/N_Q$ , [16]. The set of all  $m \times n$  type matrices with elliptic biquaternion entries is denoted by  $M_{m \times n}$  ( $H\mathbb{C}_p$ ). The ordinary matrix addition and multiplication are defined in this matrix set. Also, the scalar multiplication is expressed as in the following:

$$QA = Q\left[a_{ij}\right] = \left[Qa_{ij}\right] \in M_{m \times n}\left(H\mathbb{C}_p\right)$$

where  $Q \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  and  $A = [a_{ij}] \in M_{m \times n} (H\mathbb{C}_p)$ . For  $A = [a_{ij}] \in M_{m \times n} (H\mathbb{C}_p)$ , the Hermitian conjugate of A is defined as  $A^{\dagger} = A^{\dagger}$  $\left[a_{ji}^{\dagger}\right] \in M_{n \times m} \left(H\mathbb{C}_p\right)$  where  $a_{ji}^{\dagger}$  is the Hermitian conjugate of  $a_{ji} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$ , [20].

#### 3 Elliptic Matrix Representations of Elliptic Biquaternions

In this section, we get  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix representations of elliptic biquaternions and give some properties which are satisfied by these representations and elliptic biquaternions.

Let us consider the matrix set  $M_2(\mathbb{C}_p)$  which can be represented as

$$M_2\left(\mathbb{C}_p\right) = \left\{ \begin{bmatrix} x & y \\ z & t \end{bmatrix} : x, y, z, t \in \mathbb{C}_p \right\}$$

In the following lemma, we show that this matrix set can be represented as in a somewhat different form which are used to define the required isomorphism.

**Result 1.** The set of  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrices can be represented as

$$M_{2}(\mathbb{C}_{p}) = \left\{ \begin{bmatrix} X_{0} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_{1} & -X_{2} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_{3} \\ X_{2} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_{3} & X_{0} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_{1} \end{bmatrix} : X_{i} = x_{i} + Ix_{i}' \in \mathbb{C}_{p}, \ 0 \le i \le 3 \right\}.$$

$$(1)$$

*Proof:* Let  $A = \begin{bmatrix} z_1 + Iz_1^{\#} & z_2 + Iz_2^{\#} \\ z_3 + Iz_3^{\#} & z_4 + Iz_4^{\#} \end{bmatrix}$  be an arbitrary  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix where  $z_1, z_1^{\#}, z_2, z_2^{\#}, z_3, z_3^{\#}, z_4$  and  $z_4^{\#}$  are real numbers. Then, we can write

$$A = \begin{bmatrix} \left(x_0 - \sqrt{|p|} x_1'\right) + I\left(x_0' + \frac{x_1}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right) & \left(-x_2 + \sqrt{|p|} x_3'\right) + I\left(-x_2' - \frac{x_3}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right) \\ \left(x_2 + \sqrt{|p|} x_3'\right) + I\left(x_2' - \frac{x_3}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right) & \left(x_0 + \sqrt{|p|} x_1'\right) + I\left(x_0' - \frac{x_1}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right) \end{bmatrix}$$
(2)

such that

$$x_{0} = \frac{z_{1} + z_{4}}{2}, \quad x_{0}' = \frac{z_{1}^{\#} + z_{4}^{\#}}{2}, \quad x_{1} = \frac{\sqrt{|p|} \left(z_{1}^{\#} - z_{4}^{\#}\right)}{2}, \quad x_{1}' = \frac{z_{4} - z_{1}}{2\sqrt{|p|}} \in \mathbb{R}$$
$$x_{2} = \frac{z_{3} - z_{2}}{2}, \quad x_{2}' = \frac{z_{3}^{\#} - z_{2}^{\#}}{2}, \quad x_{3} = -\frac{\sqrt{|p|} \left(z_{2}^{\#} + z_{3}^{\#}\right)}{2}, \quad x_{3}' = \frac{z_{2} + z_{3}}{2\sqrt{|p|}} \in \mathbb{R}.$$

It can be easily seen that the arbitrary  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix in (2) is equal to the matrix

$$\begin{bmatrix} X_0 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_1 & -X_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_3 \\ X_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_3 & X_0 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IX_1 \end{bmatrix}$$

where  $X_i = x_i + I x_i' \in \mathbb{C}_p, \ 0 \le i \le 3$ .

Conversely, it is clear that the matrix given in (1) is a  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix.

Let us take into account the function

$$\sigma : H\mathbb{C}_p \to M_2(\mathbb{C}_p)$$

$$Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k} \to \sigma(Q) = \begin{bmatrix} A_0 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 & -A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 \\ A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 & A_0 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 \end{bmatrix}.$$

The function  $\sigma$  comprises the properties

$$\sigma\left(Q+R\right)=\sigma\left(Q\right)+\sigma\left(R\right), \ \sigma\left(QR\right)=\sigma\left(Q\right)\sigma\left(R\right)$$

where Q and R are any elliptic biquaternions. Also it is bijection. So,  $\sigma$  is a linear isomorphism.

**Corollary 1.** For an arbitrary  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix  $A, Q \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  satisfying the equality  $\sigma(Q) = A$  is existence and uniqueness.

*Proof:* The proof is obvious from the linear isomorphism  $\sigma$  and Lemma 1.

**Definition 1.** Let  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  be an arbitrary elliptic biquaternion where  $A_0$ ,  $A_1$ ,  $A_2$ ,  $A_3 \in \mathbb{C}_p$ , in that case the elliptic matrix

$$\sigma(Q) = \begin{bmatrix} A_0 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 & -A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 \\ A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 & A_0 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 \end{bmatrix}$$

which corresponds to Q is called  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix representation of Q.

Next two theorems include some properties which are satisfied by elliptic biquaternions and their  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix representations.

**Theorem 1.** Let  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k}$ ,  $R = B_0 + B_1 \mathbf{i} + B_2 \mathbf{j} + B_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  and  $\lambda \in \mathbb{C}_p$  be given. In this case

- 1. det  $(\sigma(Q)) = N_Q = A_0^2 + A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2$ ,
- 2. *Q* is invertible if and only if  $\sigma(Q)$  is invertible, then  $\sigma(Q^{-1}) = (\sigma(Q))^{-1}$  and  $Q^{-1} = \frac{1}{4}E_2(\sigma(Q))^{-1}E_2^{\dagger}$ , 3.  $Q = R \Leftrightarrow \sigma(Q) = \sigma(R)$ , 4.  $\sigma(Q + R) = \sigma(Q) + \sigma(R)$ ,  $\sigma(QR) = \sigma(Q)\sigma(R)$ ,  $\sigma(\lambda Q) = \sigma(Q\lambda) = \lambda\sigma(Q)$ ,  $\sigma(1) = I_2$ , 5.  $Q = \frac{1}{4}E_2\sigma(Q)E_2^{\dagger}$ ,

where  $E_2 = \begin{bmatrix} 1 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{i} & \mathbf{j} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{k} \end{bmatrix} \in M_{1 \times 2} (H\mathbb{C}_p).$ 

*Proof:* The proof of 3 and 4 are obvious due to the aforementioned linear isomorphism  $\sigma$ . On the other hand, the proof of 5 can be completed by direct calculation. Now, we will prove 1 and 2.

1. We know that 
$$\sigma(Q) = \begin{bmatrix} A_0 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 & -A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 \\ A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 & A_0 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 \end{bmatrix}$$
. Then we obtain  

$$\det(\sigma(Q)) = A_0^2 - A_1^2 \frac{I^2}{|p|} + A_2^2 - A_3^2 \frac{I^2}{|p|}$$

$$= A_0^2 - A_1^2 \frac{p}{(-p)} + A_2^2 - A_3^2 \frac{p}{(-p)}$$

$$= A_0^2 + A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2.$$

2. For an elliptic biquaternion Q, we know that Q is invertible if and only if  $N_Q \neq 0$ . Therefore, by means of the first property in this theorem, we can write

$$Q \text{ is invertible} \Leftrightarrow N_Q \neq 0 \Leftrightarrow \det(\sigma(Q)) \neq 0 \Leftrightarrow \sigma(Q) \text{ is invertible.}$$

Suppose that Q and  $\sigma$  (Q) are invertible. In this case, from the inverse property, the equality

$$QQ^{-1} = Q^{-1}Q = 1$$

is satisfied. Then, by means of the third and fourth properties in this theorem, the equalities

$$\sigma(Q) \sigma\left(Q^{-1}\right) = \sigma\left(QQ^{-1}\right) = \sigma(1) = I_2$$

and

$$\sigma\left(Q^{-1}\right)\sigma\left(Q\right) = \sigma\left(Q^{-1}Q\right) = \sigma\left(1\right) = I_2$$

are obtained. It means that  $(\sigma(Q))^{-1} = \sigma(Q^{-1})$ . Therefore, by considering the fifth property in this theorem, we obtain  $Q^{-1} = \sigma(Q^{-1})$ .  $\frac{1}{4}E_2(\sigma(Q))^{-1}E_2^{\dagger}.$ 

**Theorem 2.** Let  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  be given. In this case

1. 
$$\sigma\left(\overline{Q}\right) = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1 \\ -1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} (\sigma\left(Q\right))^T \begin{bmatrix} 0 & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$$
 where  $\overline{Q}$  is the quaternion conjugate of  $Q$ ,  
2.  $\sigma\left(Q^*\right) = \begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1 \\ -1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} \overline{\sigma\left(Q\right)} \begin{bmatrix} 0 & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix}$  where  $Q^*$  is the complex conjugate of  $Q$ ,  
3.  $\sigma\left(Q^{\dagger}\right) = \left(\overline{\sigma\left(Q\right)}\right)^T = (\sigma\left(Q\right))^*$  where  $Q^{\dagger}$  is the Hermitian conjugate of  $Q$ .

Proof: 2 and 3 can be easily shown, Now, we will prove 1.

1. For  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k}$ , we can write  $\overline{Q} = A_0 - A_1 \mathbf{i} - A_2 \mathbf{j} - A_3 \mathbf{k}$ . In this case, we get

$$\sigma\left(\overline{Q}\right) = \begin{bmatrix} A_0 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 & A_2 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 \\ -A_2 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 & A_0 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 \end{bmatrix}.$$

On the other hand, it is clear that

$$(\sigma(Q))^{T} = \begin{bmatrix} A_{0} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_{1} & A_{2} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_{3} \\ -A_{2} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_{3} & A_{0} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_{1} \end{bmatrix}$$

Then, by directly multiplying we obtain

$$\begin{bmatrix} 0 & 1 \\ -1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} (\sigma(Q))^T \begin{bmatrix} 0 & -1 \\ 1 & 0 \end{bmatrix} = \begin{bmatrix} A_0 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 & A_2 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 \\ -A_2 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_3 & A_0 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} IA_1 \end{bmatrix} = \sigma(\overline{Q}).$$

н		
н		

#### 4 Similarity of Elliptic Biquaternions and USFE for Elliptic Biquaternions

In this section, we investigate the similarity of elliptic biquaternions with the aid of their elliptic matrix representations and establish universal similarity factorization equality for elliptic biquaternions.

#### 4.1 Similarity of elliptic biquaternions

One of the natural questions concerned with elliptic biquaternions is the similarity of two elliptic biquaternions. By analogy with the classic quaternion case, the next definition is given.

**Definition 2.** For  $Q, R \in H\mathbb{C}_p$ , if there exists an invertible elliptic biquaternion X such that  $X^{-1}QX = R$ , Q and R are called similar elliptic biquaternions. This case is denoted by  $Q \sim R$ .

By considering Definition 2, a simple result, which characterizes the similarity of two elliptic biquaternions, can be given as follows.

**Theorem 3.** Let  $Q, R \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  be given. In this case,

$$Q \sim R \Leftrightarrow \sigma\left(Q\right) \sim \sigma\left(R\right). \tag{3}$$

*Proof:*  $Q \sim R$  if and only if there is an invertible elliptic biquaternion X such that  $X^{-1}QX = R$ . Then, we have

$$Q \sim R \Leftrightarrow \sigma \left( X^{-1} Q X \right) = \sigma \left( R \right)$$
$$\Leftrightarrow \sigma \left( X^{-1} \right) \sigma \left( Q \right) \sigma \left( X \right) = \sigma \left( R \right)$$
$$\Leftrightarrow \left( \sigma \left( X \right) \right)^{-1} \sigma \left( Q \right) \sigma \left( X \right) = \sigma \left( R \right)$$
$$\Leftrightarrow \sigma \left( Q \right) \sim \sigma \left( R \right)$$

from Theorem 1 (2), (3) and (4).

As a consequence of Theorem 3, we can give the following theorem.

**Theorem 4.** Let  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  be given where  $Q \notin \mathbb{C}_p$ .

1. If  $A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2 \neq 0$ , in that case  $Q \sim A_0 + \gamma(Q)$  i where  $\gamma(Q)$  is an elliptic number satisfying the equality  $\gamma^2(Q) = A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2$ . 2. If  $A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2 = 0$ , in that case  $Q \sim A_0 - \frac{1}{2}\mathbf{j} + \frac{1}{2\sqrt{|p|}}I\mathbf{k}$ .

*Proof:* For a given elliptic biquaternion  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$ , we have its  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix representation  $\sigma(Q)$ . We can calculate its characteristic polynomial as follows:

$$|\lambda I_2 - \sigma (Q)| = \begin{vmatrix} \lambda - A_0 - \frac{I}{\sqrt{|p|}} A_1 & A_2 + \frac{I}{\sqrt{|p|}} A_3 \\ - A_2 + \frac{I}{\sqrt{|p|}} A_3 & \lambda - A_0 + \frac{I}{\sqrt{|p|}} A_1 \end{vmatrix} = (\lambda - A_0)^2 + A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2$$

For  $A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2 \neq 0$ , we can get the roots of the above characteristic polynomial as  $\lambda_{1,2} = A_0 \pm \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\gamma(Q)$ . Thus, we immediately have

$$\sigma\left(Q\right) \sim \begin{bmatrix} A_{0} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\gamma\left(Q\right) & 0\\ 0 & A_{0} - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\gamma\left(Q\right) \end{bmatrix} = \sigma\left(A_{0} + \gamma\left(Q\right)\mathbf{i}\right).$$

$$\tag{4}$$

For  $A_1^2 + A_2^2 + A_3^2 = 0$ , we can get the roots of the characteristic polynomial of  $\sigma(Q)$  as  $\lambda_{1,2} = A_0$ . Then, considering the Jordan canonical form of  $\sigma(Q)$ , we can write the following

$$\sigma\left(Q\right) \sim \begin{bmatrix} A_0 & 1\\ 0 & A_0 \end{bmatrix} = \sigma\left(A_0 - \frac{1}{2}\mathbf{j} + \frac{1}{2\sqrt{|p|}}I\mathbf{k}\right).$$
(5)

If we apply Theorem 3 to (4) and (5), we can easily prove the first part and second part of this theorem, respectively.

#### 4.2 USFE for elliptic biquaternions

There is a deeper relationship between an elliptic biquaternion Q and its elliptic matrix representation  $\sigma(Q)$  which appears with USFE over the elliptic biquaternion algebra.

In [11], Tian presents a general result on the universal similarity factorization of elements over any algebra as follows:

Let A be an algebra over an arbitrary field F and  $M_n(A)$  be the matrix algebra which includes all  $n \times n$  matrices with elements in A. Also, let  $\{\tau_{ij}\}$  be the basis of A that satisfies the following rules

$$\tau_{ij}\tau_{s\,t} = \begin{cases} \tau_{i\,t} & j = s \\ 0 & j \neq s \end{cases}, \quad i, j, s, t = 1, ..., n.$$
(6)

In this case, any  $Q = \sum_{i,j=1}^{n} a_{i\,j} \tau_{i\,j} \in A \ (a_{i\,j} \in F)$  satisfies the following USFE

$$P\begin{bmatrix} Q & & & \\ & Q & & \\ & & \ddots & \\ & & & Q \end{bmatrix} P^{-1} = \begin{bmatrix} a_{11} & a_{12} & \cdots & a_{1n} \\ a_{21} & a_{22} & \cdots & a_{2n} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ a_{n1} & a_{n2} & \cdots & a_{nn} \end{bmatrix}$$
(7)

where P has the following independent form

$$P = P^{-1} = \begin{bmatrix} \tau_{11} & \tau_{21} & \cdots & \tau_{n1} \\ \tau_{12} & \tau_{22} & \cdots & \tau_{n2} \\ \vdots & \vdots & \vdots & \vdots \\ \tau_{1n} & \tau_{2n} & \cdots & \tau_{nn} \end{bmatrix}.$$
(8)

By basing on the general result indicated above, we establish USFE for elliptic biquaternions as follows.

**Theorem 5.** Let  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  be given. In this case, the elliptic biquaternion matrix  $\begin{bmatrix} Q & 0 \\ 0 & Q \end{bmatrix}$  satisfies the following USFE

$$P\begin{bmatrix}Q & 0\\0 & Q\end{bmatrix}P^{-1} = \begin{bmatrix}A_0 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}}IA_1 & -A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}}IA_3\\A_2 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}}IA_3 & A_0 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}}IA_1\end{bmatrix} = \sigma(Q) \in M_2(\mathbb{C}_p)$$
(9)

where *P* is in the following independent form:

$$P = P^{-1} = \frac{1}{2} \begin{bmatrix} 1 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{i} & \mathbf{j} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{k} \\ -\mathbf{j} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{k} & 1 + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{i} \end{bmatrix} \in M_2(H\mathbb{C}_p).$$
(10)

*Proof:* Let  $Q = A_0 + A_1 \mathbf{i} + A_2 \mathbf{j} + A_3 \mathbf{k} \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  be an arbitrary elliptic biquaternion and let us consider the elliptic biquaternions

$$\tau_{11} = \frac{1}{2} - \frac{I}{2\sqrt{|p|}}\mathbf{i}, \ \tau_{12} = -\frac{1}{2}\mathbf{j} + \frac{I}{2\sqrt{|p|}}\mathbf{k}, \ \tau_{21} = \frac{1}{2}\mathbf{j} + \frac{I}{2\sqrt{|p|}}\mathbf{k}, \ \tau_{22} = \frac{1}{2} + \frac{I}{2\sqrt{|p|}}\mathbf{i}.$$
 (11)

It is clear that the system  $\{\tau_{11}, \tau_{12}, \tau_{21}, \tau_{22}\}$  is a base of elliptic biquaternion algebra from the equalities

$$\langle \tau_{st} \,,\, \tau_{pq} \rangle = \begin{cases} 1 \,, \ (s=p) \wedge \ (t=q) \,, \ s,t,p,q=1,2 \\ \\ 0 \,, \ (s\neq p) \,\vee \, (t\neq q) \,, \ s,t,p,q=1,2 \end{cases}$$

and

$$Q = \left(A_0 + \frac{A_1I}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right)\tau_{11} + \left(-A_2 - \frac{A_3I}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right)\tau_{12} + \left(A_2 - \frac{A_3I}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right)\tau_{21} + \left(A_0 - \frac{A_1I}{\sqrt{|p|}}\right)\tau_{22}.$$

For the case n = 2, it is easy to verify that these new bases in (11) satisfy the multiplication rules in (6). Then, if we consider the last equality above and (11) in (7) and in (8) by keeping the case n = 2 in mind, we get (9) and (10).

If Lemma 1 is considered, by means of USFE for elliptic biquaternions, it can be said that every  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix is uniformly similar to the diagonal matrix diag(Q, Q) where Q is the elliptic biquaternion which corresponds to this  $2 \times 2$  elliptic matrix.

#### 5 Moore-Penrose Inverses of Elliptic Biguaternions

In this section, we define the Moore-Penrose inverse of any elliptic matrix and show that it always exists uniquely. Afterwards, we give the similar definition for elliptic biquaternions as well. Then, the existence and uniqueness of the Moore Penrose inverse for an elliptic biquaternion Q are determined by the matrix  $\sigma(Q) \in M_2(\mathbb{C}_p)$ .

**Definition 3.** Let an arbitrary elliptic matrix  $A \in M_{m \times n}(\mathbb{C}_p)$  be given. If the equations

$$AXA = A, \quad XAX = X, \quad (AX)^* = AX, \quad (XA)^* = XA$$
 (12)

have a common solution  $X \in M_{n \times m}(\mathbb{C}_p)$ , in this case this solution is called Moore-Penrose inverse of A. It is showed with  $X = A^+$ .

**Theorem 6.** Let  $A \in M_{m \times n}(\mathbb{C}_p)$  be given. In this case the Moore-Penrose inverse of A is existence and uniqueness.

*Proof:* We define a function between the space of  $m \times n$  elliptic matrices and the space of  $m \times n$  complex matrices as follows:

$$\delta: M_{m \times n} (\mathbb{C}_p) \to M_{m \times n} (\mathbb{C})$$

$$\begin{bmatrix} a_{11} + Ib_{11} & \dots & a_{1n} + Ib_{1n} \\ \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ a_{m1} + Ib_{m1} & \dots & a_{mn} + Ib_{mn} \end{bmatrix} \to \begin{bmatrix} a_{11} + i\left(b_{11}\sqrt{|p|}\right) & \dots & a_{1n} + i\left(b_{1n}\sqrt{|p|}\right) \\ \vdots & \ddots & \vdots \\ a_{m1} + i\left(b_{m1}\sqrt{|p|}\right) & \dots & a_{mn} + i\left(b_{mn}\sqrt{|p|}\right) \end{bmatrix}$$

As can be seen easily, the function  $\delta$  is bijection and so we can write

$$A = B \Leftrightarrow \delta(A) = \delta(B) \tag{13}$$

for  $A, B \in M_{m \times n} (\mathbb{C}_p)$ . Also, it comprises the following properties

$$\delta(A+B) = \delta(A) + \delta(B), \quad \delta(AB) = \delta(A)\delta(B)$$
(14)

and

$$\delta\left(A^*\right) = \left(\delta\left(A\right)\right)^* \tag{15}$$

where  $A^*$  is the conjugate transpose of  $A \in M_{m \times n}$  ( $\mathbb{C}_p$ ) and  $(\delta(A))^*$  is the conjugate transpose of  $\delta(A) \in M_{m \times n}$  ( $\mathbb{C}$ ). From (13) and (14), it is clear that  $\delta$  is an isomorphism.

Thanks to (13), (14) and (15), the elliptic matrix equation system (12) is equivalent to the following complex matrix equation system:

$$\delta(A) \,\delta(X) \,\delta(A) = \delta(A) , \qquad \delta(X) \,\delta(A) \,\delta(X) = \delta(X) , (\delta(A) \,\delta(X))^* = \delta(A) \,\delta(X) , \qquad (\delta(X) \,\delta(A))^* = \delta(X) \,\delta(A) .$$
(16)

According to the complex matrix theory (see [22] for more details) the four equations

$$\delta(A) Y \delta(A) = \delta(A), \quad Y \delta(A) Y = Y, \quad (\delta(A) Y)^* = \delta(A) Y, \quad (Y \delta(A))^* = Y \delta(A)$$

have a unique common solution  $Y = (\delta(A))^+$  which is called the Moore-Penrose inverse of  $\delta(A)$ . Thus, if we take into account the system (16) we can immediately obtain  $\delta(X) = (\delta(A))^+$ . From the definition of isomorphism  $\delta$ , it is clear that the matrix  $X \in M_{m \times n}(\mathbb{C}_p)$  which

satisfies  $\delta(X) = (\delta(A))^+$  is existence and uniqueness. In this case, with the aid of the equalities (13), (14) and (15), we conclude that the elliptic matrix X, which is indicated above, is the unique solution of the elliptic matrix equation system (12).

**Definition 4.** Let an elliptic biquaternion  $Q \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  be given. If the equations

$$QXQ = Q, \quad XQX = X, \quad (QX)^{\dagger} = QX, \quad (XQ)^{\dagger} = XQ$$
(17)

have a common solution  $X \in H\mathbb{C}_p$ , in this case this solution is called Moore-Penrose inverse of Q. It is showed with  $X = Q^+$ .

**Theorem 7.** Let  $Q \in H\mathbb{C}_p$ . In that case, its Moore-Penrose inverse  $Q^+$  is existence and uniqueness. Also  $Q^+$  satisfies the following equalities

$$\sigma(Q^+) = (\sigma(Q))^+, \quad Q^+ = \frac{1}{4}E_2(\sigma(Q))^+ E_2^{\dagger}$$

where  $E_2 = \begin{bmatrix} 1 - \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{i} & \mathbf{j} + \frac{1}{\sqrt{|p|}} I\mathbf{k} \end{bmatrix} \in M_{1 \times 2} (H\mathbb{C}_p).$ 

Proof: If we consider Theorem 1 (3), (4) and Theorem 2 (3), we can easily see that the elliptic biquaternion equation system (17) is equivalent to the following elliptic matrix equation system:

$$\sigma(Q) \sigma(X) \sigma(Q) = \sigma(Q) , \qquad \sigma(X) \sigma(Q) \sigma(X) = \sigma(X) , (\sigma(Q) \sigma(X))^* = \sigma(Q) \sigma(X) , \qquad (\sigma(X) \sigma(Q))^* = \sigma(X) \sigma(Q) .$$
(18)

According to Definition 3 and Theorem 6, the four equations

$$\sigma(Q) Y \sigma(Q) = \sigma(Q), \quad Y \sigma(Q) Y = Y,$$
  
$$(\sigma(Q) Y)^* = \sigma(Q) Y, \quad (Y \sigma(Q))^* = Y \sigma(Q)$$

have a unique common solution  $Y = (\sigma(Q))^+ \in M_2(\mathbb{C}_p)$  which is called the Moore-Penrose inverse of  $\sigma(Q)$ . Thus, if we take into account the system (18) we can write  $\sigma(X) = (\sigma(Q))^+$ . From Corollary 1, we know that the elliptic biquaternion  $X \in H\mathbb{C}_p$  which satisfies  $\sigma(X) = (\sigma(Q))^+$ .  $(\sigma(Q))^+$  is existence and uniqueness. In this case, with the aid of Theorem 1 (3), (4) and Theorem 2 (3), we conclude that the elliptic biquaternion X, which is indicated above, is the unique solution of the system (17). According to Definition 4, we denote this X by  $X = Q^+$ . Thus, it is clear that  $\sigma(Q^+) = (\sigma(Q))^+$ . From this last equality and Theorem 1 (5),  $Q^+ = \frac{1}{4}E_2(\sigma(Q))^+E_2^{\dagger}$  can be easily obtained.

#### 6 References

- B. L. van der Waerden, *Hamilton's discovery of quaternions*, Math. Mag., **49**(5) (1976), 227-234. W. R. Hamilton, *Lectures on Quaternions*, Hodges and Smith, Dublin, 1853. [1]
- [2] [3]
- T. Y. Lam, The Algebraic Theory of Quadratic Forms, Benjamin, Newyork, 1973.
- M. L. Mehta, Matrix Theory, Selected Topics and Useful Results, Hindustan P. Co., India, 1989. [4]
- R. S. Pierce, Associative Algebras, Springer-Verlag, Newyork, 1982. [5]
- B. L. van der Waerden, A History of Algebra from al-Khwarizmi to Emmy Noether, Springer-Verlag, Newyork, 1985. [6]
- M. Bekar, Y. Yaylı, Involutions of complexified quaternions and split quaternions, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebr., 23(2) (2013), 283-299. [7]
- M. A. Güngör, M. Sarduvan, A note on dual quaternions and matrices of dual quaternions, Sci. Magna, 7(1) (2011), 1-11. [8]
- [9] I. A. Kösal, A note on hyperbolic quaternions, Univ. J. Math. Appl., 1(3) (2018), 155-159.
- G. Cerda-Morales, On fourth-order jacobsthal quaternions, J. Math. Sci. Model., 1(2) (2018), 73-79. [10]
- Y. Tian, Universal similarity factorization equalities over real clifford algebras, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebr., 8(2) (1998), 365-402. [11]
- [12] Y. Tian, Universal factorization equalities for quaternion matrices and their applications, Math. J. Okoyama Univ., 41(1) (1999), 45-62. [13]
- Y. Tian, Universal similarity factorization equalities over generalized clifford algebras, Acta Math. Sin., 22(1) (2006), 289-300. Y. Tian, Biquaternions and their complex matrix representations, Beitrage Algebra Geom., 54(2) (2013), 575-592. [14]
- [15] H. H. Kösal, M. Tosun, Universal similarity factorization equalities for commutative quaternions and their matrices, Linear Multilinear Algebra, (2018), doi:10.1080/03081087.2018.1439878.
- [16] K. E. Özen, M. Tosun, Elliptic biquaternion algebra, AIP Conf. Proc., 1926 (2018), 020032-1-020032-6.
- [17]
- K. E. Özen, M. Tosun, A note on elliptic biquaternions, AIP Conf. Proc., **1926** (2018), 020033-1–020033-6. K. E. Özen, M. Tosun, *p-Trigonometric approach to elliptic biquaternions*, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebr., (2018), doi:10.1007/s00006-018-0878-3. [18]
- K. E. Özen, M. Tosun, Elliptic matrix representations of elliptic biquaternions and their applications, Int. Electron. J. Geom., **11**(2) (2018), 96-103. K. E. Özen, M. Tosun, On the matrix algebra of elliptic biquaternions, (Submitted Article). [19]
- [20] H. H. Kösal, On Commutative quaternion matrices, Ph.D. Thesis, Sakarya University, 2016. [21]
- A. Ben-Israel, T. N. E. Greville, Generalized Inverses: Theory and Applications, Springer-Verlag, Newyork, 2003. [22]

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 28-31

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# **One Parameter Elliptical Planar Motion**

Ayşe Zeynep Azak<sup>1,\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Mathematics and Science Education, Faculty of Education, Sakarya University, 54300, Sakarya, Turkey. ORCID: 0000-0002-2686-6043

\* Corresponding Author E-mail: apirdal@sakarya.edu.tr

**Abstract:** In order to describe the elliptical planar motion, two moving and one fixed elliptical planes have been considered. Thus, one parameter elliptical planar motion is defined by the help of these planes. The absolute, relative and sliding velocities have been obtained and the relation between these velocities have been proven. Also, pole points of the elliptical planar motion have been derived. Finally, some results have been given regarding to the absolute, relative, sliding velocities and the pole points of elliptical planar motion.

Keywords: Elliptical planar motion, Elliptical plane, Kinematics.

#### 1 Introduction

Motion is mathematically described as a change in the position of an object or a point with respect to time. The rate of motion in a specific direction gives us velocity. The velocities of the planar motion is always measured with respect to a coordinate systems (frames of reference). Although spherical motions are of great interest to researchers, planar motion has an important place in kinematics. Because many objects in engineering are relatively flat and thin or symmetrical. That is, the motion of these objects is considered to be approximately planar motion. Müller initially studied one parameter planar motions and obtained the relationships between absolute, relative and sliding velocities and accelerations in the Euclidean plane  $E^2$ . Moreover, he gave the Euler-Savary formula which gives the relationship between the curvatures of the trajectory curves [1].

Blaschke and Müller have introduced one parameter planar motions in terms of complex numbers [2]. In [3], it was demonstrated that the relation between complex velocities and pole points can be obtained with the help of moving coordinate system for the one paremeter motion in the complex plane.

Pereira and Ersoy have introduced elliptical harmonic motion by using elliptical numbers. Also, they have found the relationships between the absolute, the relative and the sliding velocities and accelerations for this motion. Furthermore, the canonical relative system of the motion has been deïňAned and EulerâĂŞSavary formula has been obtained [4].

Özdemir has given the generation of elliptical rotations by the help of the elliptic scalar product and elliptic vector product for a given ellipsoid. For this purpose, an elliptical ortogonal matrix and an elliptical skew symmetric matrix have been defined for this elliptic inner product. Thereby, he has examined the motion of a point on the ellipsoid using elliptical rotation matrices [5].

This paper is organized as follows. In the "nĂrst part, basic concepts have been represented as if elliptic inner product, elliptical norm of a vector, elliptical rotation matrix etc. In the second part, one parameter elliptical planar motion has been introduced by the help of the elliptically orthogonal systems of  $\{O; \vec{e_1}, \vec{e_2}\}$  and  $\{O'; \vec{e_1}, \vec{e_2}\}$ . These orthogonal systems represent the moving elliptical plane E and the "nĂxed elliptical plane E', respectively. Furthermore, an elliptically orthogonal, relative system  $\{B; \vec{h_1}, \vec{h_2}\}$  has been considered. Thus, the theorems and results have been given regarding to the velocities and pole points of this motion.

#### 2 Basic Concepts

Let us consider a for an ellipse in the form

$$(E): a_1x^2 + a_2y^2 = 1, \frac{x^2}{a^2} + \frac{y^2}{b^2} = 1$$

where  $a_1 = \frac{1}{a^2}$ ,  $a_2 = \frac{1}{b^2}$  and  $a, b \in R$  (see [5]). The elliptic inner product or *B*-inner product for the vectors  $\vec{u} = (u_1, u_2)$ ,  $\vec{w} = (w_1, w_2) \in R^2$ 

 $B(\vec{u}, \vec{w}) = a_1 u_1 w_1 + a_2 u_2 w_2$ 

where  $a_1, a_2 \in R^+$ . This scalar product is positive definite and also can be written as  $B(\vec{u}, \vec{w}) = u^t \Omega w$  where the associated matrix  $\Omega$  is defined as follows

$$\Omega = \left[ \begin{array}{cc} a_1 & 0\\ 0 & a_2 \end{array} \right].$$

28



ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

Thus, the real vector space  $R^2$  equipped with the elliptic inner product will be denoted by  $R^2_{a_1,a_2}$  and the number  $\Delta = \sqrt{\det \Omega}$  will be called "constant of the scalar product" [5].

The elliptical norm of a vector  $\vec{u} \in R^2$  is defined to be  $\|\vec{u}\|_B = \sqrt{B(\vec{u}, \vec{u})}$ . Moreover, two vectors  $\vec{u}$  and  $\vec{w}$  are called *B*-orthogonal or elliptically orthogonal vectors if  $B(\vec{u}, \vec{w}) = 0$ . In addition to that if their norms become 1, then these vectors are called elliptically orthonormal or *B*-orthonormal. The cosine of the angle between two vectors  $\vec{u}$  and  $\vec{w}$  is defined as,

$$\cos \theta = \frac{B\left(\vec{u}, \vec{w}\right)}{\|\vec{u}\|_B \|\vec{w}\|_B}$$

where  $\theta$  is compatible with the parameters of the angular parametric equations of ellipse [5]. Let T be a B-skew symmetric matrix. Then, an elliptical rotation matrix in the space  $R_{a_1,a_2}^2$  is defined by

$$R^B_{\theta} = \begin{bmatrix} \cos\theta & \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}}\sin\theta \\ -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}}\sin\theta & \cos\theta \end{bmatrix}.$$

#### 3 One Parameter Planar Elliptical Motion

Let  $E_1$  and E be moving and E' be fixed elliptical planes and  $\{B; \overrightarrow{h_1}, \overrightarrow{h_2}\}, \{O; \overrightarrow{e_1}, \overrightarrow{e_2}\}, \{O'; \overrightarrow{e_1}, \overrightarrow{e_2}\}$  represent their orthogonal coordinate systems, respectively.

Therefore, the following scalar products can be written for the vectors

$$B\left(\vec{e}_{i},\vec{e}_{j}\right) = \begin{cases} a_{i}, & if \ i = j\\ 0, & if \ i \neq j \end{cases}$$

and

$$B\left(\vec{e}_{i}^{\prime},\vec{e}_{j}^{\prime}\right) = \begin{cases} a_{i}, & if \quad i=j\\ 0, & if \quad i\neq j \end{cases}$$

The motion of the moving relative plane  $E_1$  with respect to other moving plane E is given by the following relation

$$\vec{h_1} = \cos\theta \,\vec{e_1} + \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} \sin\theta \,\vec{e_2} 
\vec{h_2} = -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} \sin\theta \,\vec{e_1} + \cos\theta \,\vec{e_2}$$
(1)

and

$$\overrightarrow{OB} = \overrightarrow{b} = b_1 \overrightarrow{h_1} + b_2 \overrightarrow{h_2} \tag{2}$$

Here  $\theta$  is elliptical rotation angle and  $\overrightarrow{OB}$  represents the vector from the origin of the moving coordinate system to the origin of other moving relative coordinate system.

Similarly, the motion of the moving relative plane  $E_1$  with respect to fixed plane E' is given by

$$\vec{h}_1 = \cos\theta \vec{e}_1' + \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} \sin\theta \vec{e}_2' 
\vec{h}_2 = -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} \sin\theta \vec{e}_1' + \cos\theta \vec{e}_2'$$
(3)

and

$$\overrightarrow{O'B} = \overrightarrow{b'} = b_1'\overrightarrow{h_1} + b_2'\overrightarrow{h_2}$$
(4)

Here  $\theta'$  is elliptical rotation angle and  $\overrightarrow{O'B}$  represents the vector from the origin of the fixed coordinate system to the origin of moving relative coordinate system.

Taking the differentials of the equations (1) and (2) and rearranging for the motion of  $E_1/E$ , we obtain

$$\begin{aligned} d\overrightarrow{h_1} &= \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} d\theta \, \overrightarrow{h_2} \\ d\overrightarrow{h_2} &= -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} d\theta \, \overrightarrow{h_1} \\ d \, \overrightarrow{b} &= \left( db_1 - \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} b_2 \, d\theta \right) \overrightarrow{h_1} + \left( db_2 + \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} b_1 d\theta \right) \overrightarrow{h_2}. \end{aligned}$$

Similarly, taking the differentials of the equations (3), (4) and rearranging for the motion of  $E_1/E'$ , we find

$$\begin{aligned} d'\overrightarrow{h_1} &= \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} d\theta' \overrightarrow{h_2} \\ d'\overrightarrow{h_2} &= -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} d\theta' \overrightarrow{h_1} \\ d'\overrightarrow{b} &= \left( db_1' - \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} b_2' d\theta' \right) \overrightarrow{h_1} + \left( db_2' + \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} b_1' d\theta' \right) \overrightarrow{h_2}. \end{aligned}$$

For the sake of shortness let us use

$$\begin{aligned} \lambda &= d\theta, \quad \sigma_1 = db_1 - \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} b_2 \, d\theta, \quad \sigma_2 = db_2 + \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} b_1 d\theta \\ \lambda' &= d\theta', \quad \sigma_1' = db_1' - \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} b_2' d\theta', \quad \sigma_2' = db_2' + \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} b_1' d\theta' \end{aligned}$$

The derivative equations of the motion  $E_1/E$  become

$$d\vec{h_1} = \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} \lambda \vec{h_2}$$
  
$$d\vec{h_2} = -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} \lambda \vec{h_1}$$
  
$$d\vec{b} = \sigma_1 \vec{h_1} + \sigma_2 \vec{h_2}$$

Similarly, the derivative equations of the motion  $E_1/E'$  become

$$d'\vec{h_1} = \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}}\lambda'\vec{h_2}$$
$$d'\vec{h_2} = -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}}\lambda'\vec{h_1}$$
$$d'\vec{b} = \sigma_1'\vec{h_1} + \sigma_2'\vec{h_2}$$

Here  $\sigma_1, \sigma_2, \sigma_1', \sigma_2'$  are Pfaffian forms of the motion. Let we us a point  $X = (x_1, x_2)$  according to the relative moving coordinate system to analyze the elliptical motions on the elliptical plane. Since the vector equations . ζ.

$$\overrightarrow{OB} = \overrightarrow{b} = b_1 \overrightarrow{h_1} + b_2 \overrightarrow{h_2}$$
$$\overrightarrow{BX} = \overrightarrow{x} = x_1 \overrightarrow{h_1} + x_2 \overrightarrow{h_2}$$
$$\overrightarrow{OX} = \overrightarrow{OB} + \overrightarrow{BX}$$

can be written as above, we have

and

$$\overrightarrow{x} = (b_1 + x_1) \overrightarrow{h_1} + (b_2 + x_2) \overrightarrow{h_2}.$$

So differential of X with respect to E is

$$\overrightarrow{OB} = \overrightarrow{b} = b_1 \overrightarrow{h_1} + b_2 \overrightarrow{h_2} \tag{5}$$

Therefore the relative velocity vector of X with respect to E is

$$\overrightarrow{V_r} = \frac{d\overrightarrow{x}}{dt}.$$

and also differential of X with respect to E' is

$$d'\vec{x} = \left(dx_1 + \sigma_1' - \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}}x_2\lambda'\right)\vec{h_1} + \left(dx_2 + \sigma_2' + \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}}x_1\lambda'\right)\vec{h_2}.$$
(6)

Thus, the absolute velocity vector of X with respect to E' is

$$\overrightarrow{V_a} = \frac{d'\overrightarrow{x}}{dt}.$$

If  $\overrightarrow{V_r} = 0$  or  $\overrightarrow{V_a} = 0$  then the point X is fixed in the planes E and E', respectively. Thus, the conditions that the points to be fixed in elliptical planes E and E' become

$$dx_1 = -\sigma_1 + \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} x_2 \lambda, \quad dx_2 = -\sigma_2 - \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} x_1 \lambda$$
(7)

and

$$dx_1 = -\sigma_1' + \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} x_2 \,\lambda', \quad dx_2 = -\sigma_2' - \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} x_1 \,\lambda'.$$

respectively. Substituting equation (7) into equation (6) and considering that the sliding velocity of the point X is  $\overrightarrow{V_f} = \frac{d_f \overrightarrow{x}}{dt}$ , we have

$$d_f \overrightarrow{x} = \left[ \left( \sigma_1' - \sigma_1 \right) - x_2 \frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} \left( \lambda' - \lambda \right) \right] \overrightarrow{h_1} + \left[ \left( \sigma_2' - \sigma_2 \right) + x_1 \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} \left( \lambda' - \lambda \right) \right] \overrightarrow{h_2}. \tag{8}$$

Thus, the following theorem can be given.

**Theorem 1.** Let X be a moving point on the plane  $E_1$  and  $\overrightarrow{V_r}$ ,  $\overrightarrow{V_a}$ ,  $\overrightarrow{V_f}$  be the relative, absolute and sliding velocities of X under the one-parameter planar motions, respectively. Then, the relation between the velocities is given as below:

$$\overrightarrow{V_a} = \overrightarrow{V_r} + \overrightarrow{V_f}$$

*Proof:* The proof can be easily seen by considering the equations (5), (6) and (8).

**Result 1.** In the case of  $a_1 = 1$ ,  $a_2 = 1$ , the relative, absolute and sliding velocities are found as

$$\begin{aligned} d\vec{x} &= (dx_1 + \sigma_1 - x_2\lambda)\vec{h_1} + (dx_2 + \sigma_2 + x_1\lambda)\vec{h_2} \\ d'\vec{x} &= (x_1 + dx_1 + \sigma_1' - x_2\lambda')\vec{h_1} + (x_2 + dx_2 + \sigma_2' + x_1\lambda')\vec{h_2} \\ d_f\vec{x} &= [(\sigma_1' - \sigma_1) - x_2(\lambda' - \lambda)]\vec{h_1} + [(\sigma_2' - \sigma_2) + x_1(\lambda' - \lambda)]\vec{h_2} \end{aligned}$$

respectively [1].

**Theorem 2.** The pole point P of the one parameter elliptical planar motion E/E' is obtained by

$$p_1 = -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} \cdot \frac{\left(\sigma_2' - \sigma_2\right)}{\left(\lambda' - \lambda\right)}, \qquad p_2 = \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} \cdot \frac{\left(\sigma_1' - \sigma_1\right)}{\left(\lambda' - \lambda\right)}$$

where  $\overrightarrow{BP} = \overrightarrow{p} = p_1 \overrightarrow{h_1} + p_2 \overrightarrow{h_2}$ .

Proof: In a one parameter elliptical motion, pole points of the motion are characterized for cases that the sliding velocity vector becomes zero. Namely,  $d_f \vec{x} = 0$ . It will be taken into account  $\theta \neq 0$  and  $\theta' \neq 0$  in order to avoid the pure rotation motion. Then, considering that the equality of (8) equals zero

$$\left[\left(\sigma_1'-\sigma_1\right)-x_2\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}}\left(\lambda'-\lambda\right)\right]\overrightarrow{h_1}+\left[\left(\sigma_2'-\sigma_2\right)+x_1\frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}}\left(\lambda'-\lambda\right)\right]\overrightarrow{h_2}=0$$

is found. From this last equation, coordinates of the pole point P for the one parameter elliptical motion E/E' are obtained by

$$x_1 = p_1 = -\frac{\sqrt{a_1}}{\sqrt{a_2}} \cdot \frac{(\sigma_2' - \sigma_2)}{(\lambda' - \lambda)},$$
  

$$x_2 = p_2 = \frac{\sqrt{a_2}}{\sqrt{a_1}} \cdot \frac{(\sigma_1' - \sigma_1)}{(\lambda' - \lambda)}.$$

**Result 2.** In the case of  $a_1 = 1$ ,  $a_2 = 1$ , pole points of the one parameter elliptical planar motion E/E' correspond to pole points of the one parameter planar motion on the Euclidean plane [1].

#### 4 References

- [1] H.R. Müller, Kinematik, Sammlung GÄűschen, Walter de Gruyter, Berlin, 1963.
- [2] [3]
- W. Blaschke, H.R. Müller, *Ebene Kinematik*, Verlag Von R., Oldenbourg, München, 1956. N. Kuruoğlu, A. Tutar, M. Düldül, *On the moving coordinate systems on the complex plane and pole points*, Bull. Pure Appl. Sci. Sec. E Math. Stat., **20**(1) (2001), 1-6.
- N. T. Sa Pereira, S. Ersoy, Elliptical harmonic motion and Euler-Savary formula, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebr., 26(2) (2016), 731-755. [4]
- [5] M. Özdemir, An alternative approach to elliptical motion, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebr., 26(1) (2016), 279-304.

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 32-35

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# On Some New Paranormed Lucas Sequence Spaces and Lucas Core

Serkan Demiriz<sup>1,\*</sup> Hacer Bilgin Ellidokuzoĝlu<sup>2</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Gaziosmanpaşa University, 60240 Tokat, Turkey. ORCID: 0000-0002-4662-6020 <sup>2</sup> Recep Tayyip Erdoğan University, Faculty of Arts and Science, Department of Mathematics, Rize, Turkey.

ORCID: 0000-0003-1658-201X

\* Corresponding Author E-mail: serkandemiriz@gmail.com

**Abstract:** The sequence spaces  $c_0(\hat{L}), c(\hat{L}), \ell_{\infty}(\hat{L})$  and  $\ell_p(\hat{L})$  have been recently introduced and studied by Karakaş and Karabudak. The aim of this paper is to extend the results of Karakaş and Karabudak to the paranormed case and is to work the spaces  $c_0(\hat{L}, p), c(\hat{L}, p), \ell_{\infty}(\hat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell(\hat{L}, p)$ . Furthermore, Lucas core of a complex-valued sequence has been introduced, and we prove some inclusion theorems related to this new type of core.

Keywords: Lucas numbers, Lucas core, Matrix transformations, Paranormed sequence spaces.

#### 1 Introduction

In mathematics, the Fibonacci numbers are the numbers in the following integer sequence:

 $0, 1, 1, 2, 3, 5, 8, 13, 21, 34, 55, 89, 144, \ldots$ 

The sequence  $(f_n)$  of Fibonacci numbers is given by the linear recurrence relations

$$f_0 = 0, f_1 = 1$$
 and  $f_n = f_{n-1} + f_{n-2}, n \ge 2$ .

This sequence has many interesting properties and applications in arts, sciences and architecture. For example, the ratio sequence of Fibonacci numbers converges to the golden ratio which is important in sciences and arts.

Similar to the Fibonacci numbers, each Lucas number is defined to be the sum of its two immediate previous terms, thereby forming a Fibonacci integer sequence. The first two Lucas numbers are  $L_0 = 2$  and  $L_1 = 1$  as opposed to the first two Fibonacci numbers  $f_0 = 0$  and  $f_1 = 1$ . Though closely related in definition, Lucas and Fibonacci numbers exhibit distinct properties. The Lucas numbers may thus be defined as follows:

$$L_n = \begin{cases} 2 & , & n = 0, \\ 1 & , & n = 1, \\ L_{n-1} + L_{n-2} & , & n > 1. \end{cases}$$

The sequence of Lucas number is:

#### $2, 1, 3, 4, 7, 11, 18, 29, 47, 76, 123, \dots$

The ratio of the successive both Fibonacci and Lucas numbers is as known golden ratio. There are many applications of golden ratio in many places of mathematics and physics, in general theory of high energy particle theory [1]. Also, some basic properties of Lucas numbers [1] are given as follows:

$$L_n = \left(\frac{1+\sqrt{5}}{2}\right)^n + \left(\frac{1-\sqrt{5}}{2}\right)^n \quad \text{(Binet's formula for Lucas numbers)}$$
$$L_n^2 - L_{n-1}L_{n+1} = 5(-1)^n \quad \text{and} \quad \sum_{k=1}^n L_k^2 = L_n L_{n+1} - 2 \quad \text{(Additional identities)}$$
$$\lim_{n \to \infty} \frac{L_n}{L_{n-1}} = \frac{1+\sqrt{5}}{2} = \varphi \qquad \text{(Golden ratio)}$$



http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

ISSN: 2651-544X

Lucas numbers was first used by Karakas and Karabudak [2] in the theory of summability. Let  $L_n$  be the *n*th Lucas number for every  $n \in \mathbb{N}$ . Then, the infinite Lucas matrix  $\widehat{L} = (\widehat{L}_{nk})$  is defined by

$$\widehat{L}_{nk} = \begin{cases} \frac{L_{k-1}^2}{L_n \cdot L_{n-1} + 2} &, & 1 \le k \le n, \\ 0 & , & k > n \end{cases}$$

where  $n, k \in \mathbb{N}$  [2]. Recently, a lot of papers have been studying by many researchers on Lucas and Fibonacci sequences. For instance, see [3-12].

Assume here and after that  $(p_k)$  be a bounded sequences of strictly positive real numbers with  $\sup p_k = H$  and  $L = \max\{1, H\}$  and by  $\mathcal{F}$ and  $\mathbb{N}_k$ , we shall denote the collection of all finite subsets of  $\mathbb{N}$  and the set of all  $n \in \mathbb{N}$  such that n > k, respectively. Then, the paranormed sequence spaces  $\ell_{\infty}(p), c(p), c_0(p)$  and  $\ell(p)$  were defined by Maddox [13] (see also Maddox [14] and Nakano [15]) as follows:

$$\begin{split} \ell_{\infty}(p) &= \left\{ x = (x_k) \in w : \sup_{k \in \mathbb{N}} |x_k|^{p_k} < \infty \right\}, \\ c(p) &= \left\{ x = (x_k) \in w : \lim_{k \to \infty} |x_k - l|^{p_k} = 0 \text{ for some } l \in \mathbb{R} \right\}, \\ c_0(p) &= \left\{ x = (x_k) \in w : \lim_{k \to \infty} |x_k|^{p_k} = 0 \right\}, \\ \ell(p) &= \left\{ x = (x_k) \in w : \sum_k |x_k|^{p_k} < \infty \right\}, \end{split}$$

which are the complete spaces paranormed by

$$g_1(x) = \sup_{k \in \mathbb{N}} |x_k|^{p_k/L} \iff \inf p_k > 0 \text{ and } g_2(x) = \left(\sum_k |x_k|^{p_k}\right)^{1/L},$$

respectively. We shall assume throughout that  $p_k^{-1} + (p_k^{'})^{-1} = 1$  provided  $1 < \inf p_k < H < \infty$ . It is well known that paranormed spaces have more general properties than normed spaces. Recently, there have been many studies on both normed and paranormed sequence spaces. The reader can look at the articles on this subject [16-20, 22-32].

In this work, we generalize the normed sequence spaces defined by Karakas and Karabudak [2] to paranormed spaces. Let  $\mu$  denote any of the spaces  $c_0, c, \ell_\infty$  and  $\ell_p$ . We prove that  $\mu(\hat{L}, p)$  is linearly paranorm isomorphic to  $\mu(p)$  and determine the  $\alpha -, \beta -$  and  $\gamma$ -duals of the  $\mu(\hat{L},p)$ . Furthermore, Lucas core of a complex-valued sequence has been introduced, and we prove some inclusion theorems related to this new type of core.

#### The Paranormed Sequence Spaces $c_0(\widehat{L}, p), c(\widehat{L}, p), \ell_{\infty}(\widehat{L}, p)$ and $\ell(\widehat{L}, p)$ 2

In this section, we define the new sequence spaces  $c_0(\widehat{L}, p)$ ,  $c(\widehat{L}, p)$ ,  $\ell_{\infty}(\widehat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell(\widehat{L}, p)$  by using the sequences of Lucas numbers, and prove that these sequence spaces are the complete paranormed linear metric spaces and compute their  $\alpha -, \beta -$  and  $\gamma -$  duals.

We define the sequence spaces  $c_0(\hat{L}, p), c(\hat{L}, p), \ell_{\infty}(\hat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell(\hat{L}, p)$  by

$$c_{0}(\widehat{L}, p) = \left\{ x = (x_{k}) \in w : \lim_{n \to \infty} \left| \frac{1}{L_{n}L_{n+1} + 2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} L_{i-1}^{2} x_{i} \right|^{p_{n}} = 0 \right\},$$

$$c(\widehat{L}, p) = \left\{ x = (x_{k}) \in w : \exists l \in \mathbb{C} \ni \lim_{n \to \infty} \left| \frac{1}{L_{n}L_{n+1} + 2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} L_{i-1}^{2} x_{i} - l \right|^{p_{n}} = 0 \right\},$$

$$\ell_{\infty}(\widehat{L}, p) = \left\{ x = (x_{k}) \in w : \sup_{n \in \mathbb{N}} \left| \frac{1}{L_{n}L_{n+1} + 2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} L_{i-1}^{2} x_{i} \right|^{p_{n}} < \infty \right\},$$

$$\ell(\widehat{L}, p) = \left\{ x = (x_{k}) \in w : \sum_{n} \left| \frac{1}{L_{n}L_{n+1} + 2} \sum_{i=1}^{n} L_{i-1}^{2} x_{i} \right|^{p_{n}} < \infty \right\}.$$

In the case  $(p_n) = e = (1, 1, 1, ...)$ , the sequence spaces  $c_0(\hat{L}, p)$ ,  $c(\hat{L}, p)$ ,  $\ell_{\infty}(\hat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell(\hat{L}, p)$  are, respectively, reduced to the sequence spaces  $c_0(\hat{L})$ ,  $c(\hat{L})$ ,  $\ell_{\infty}(\hat{L})$  and  $\ell(\hat{L})$  which are introduced by Karakaş and Karabudak [2].

Define the sequence  $y = (y_k)$ , which will be frequently used as the  $\hat{L}$ -transform of a sequence  $x = (x_k)$ , i.e.,

$$y_k = \hat{L}_k(x) = \frac{1}{L_k \cdot L_{k-1} + 2} \sum_{i=1}^k L_{i-1}^2 \cdot x_i \; ; \quad (k \in \mathbb{N}_0)$$

**Theorem 1.** The following statements hold:

(i) The sequence spaces  $c_0(\hat{L}, p), c(\hat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell_{\infty}(\hat{L}, p)$  are the complete linear metric spaces paranormed by g, defined by

$$g(x) = \sup_{k \in \mathbb{N}} \left| \frac{1}{L_k \cdot L_{k-1} + 2} \sum_{i=1}^k L_{i-1}^2 \cdot x_i \right|^{p_k/L}.$$

(ii)  $\ell(\widehat{L}, p)$  is a complete linear metric space paranormed by

$$g^*(x) = \left(\sum_{k} \left| \frac{1}{L_k \cdot L_{k-1} + 2} \sum_{i=1}^k L_{i-1}^2 \cdot x_i \right|^{p_k} \right)^{1/L}.$$

Therefore, one can easily check that the absolute property does not hold on the spaces  $c_0(\hat{L}, p), c(\hat{L}, p)$ ,  $\ell_{\infty}(\hat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell(\hat{L}, p)$  that is  $h(x) \neq h(|x|)$  for at least one sequence in those spaces, and this says that  $c_0(\hat{L}, p), c(\hat{L}, p), \ell_{\infty}(\hat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell(\hat{L}, p)$  are the sequence spaces of non-absolute type; where  $|x| = (|x_k|)$ .

**Theorem 2.** The sequence spaces  $c_0(\widehat{L}, p)$ ,  $c(\widehat{L}, p)$ ,  $\ell_{\infty}(\widehat{L}, p)$  and  $\ell(\widehat{L}, p)$  are linearly isomorphic to the spaces  $c_0(p)$ , c(p),  $\ell_{\infty}(p)$  and  $\ell(p)$ , respectively, where  $0 < p_k \le H < \infty$ .

**Theorem 3.** The matrix  $D = (d_{nk})$  is defined by

$$d_{nk} = \begin{cases} \tilde{\Delta} \left[ \frac{a_k}{L_{k-1}^2} \right] (L_k L_{k-1} + 2) &, \quad (0 \le k \le n-1) \\ \\ \frac{L_n L_{n-1} + 2}{L_{n-1}^2} a_n &, \quad (k = n) \\ \\ 0 &, \quad (k > n) \end{cases}$$

for all  $k, n \in \mathbb{N}$  and  $M \in \mathbb{N}_2$ . Let  $K^* = \{k \in \mathbb{N} : 0 \le k \le n\} \cap K$  for  $K \in \mathcal{F}$  and  $M \in \mathbb{N}_2$ . Define the sets  $\hat{L}_6(p)$ ,  $\hat{L}_7$ ,  $\hat{L}_8(p)$ ,  $\hat{L}_9$ ,  $\hat{L}_{10}(p)$ ,  $\hat{L}_{11}(p)$ ,  $\hat{L}_{12}(p)$ ,  $\hat{L}_{13}(p)$  as follows:

$$\begin{split} \hat{L}_{6}(p) &= \bigcup_{M>1} \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \sup_{n \in \mathbb{N}} \sum_{k=0}^{n} |d_{nk}| \, M^{-1/p_{k}} < \infty \right\}, \\ \hat{L}_{7} &= \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \lim_{n \to \infty} |d_{nk}| \text{ exists for each } k \in \mathbb{N} \right\}, \\ \hat{L}_{8}(p) &= \bigcup_{M>1} \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \exists (\alpha_{k}) \in \mathbb{R} \ni \sup_{n \in \mathbb{N}} \sum_{k=0}^{n} |d_{nk} - \alpha_{k}| \, M^{-1/p_{k}} < \infty \right\} \\ \hat{L}_{9} &= \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \exists \alpha \in \mathbb{R} \ni \lim_{n \to \infty} \left| \sum_{k=0}^{n} d_{nk} - \alpha \right| = 0 \right\}, \\ \hat{L}_{10}(p) &= \bigcap_{M>1} \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \sup_{n \in \mathbb{N}} \sum_{k=0}^{n} |d_{nk}| \, M^{-1/p_{k}} < \infty \right\}, \\ \hat{L}_{11}(p) &= \bigcap_{M>1} \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \exists (\alpha_{k}) \in \mathbb{R} \ni \lim_{n \to \infty} \sum_{k=0}^{n} |d_{nk} - \alpha_{k}| \, M^{1/p_{k}} = 0 \right\}, \\ \hat{L}_{12}(p) &= \bigcup_{M>1} \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \sup_{n} \sup_{k \in K^{*}} |d_{nk} M^{-1}|^{p_{k}} < \infty \right\}, \\ \hat{L}_{13}(p) &= \bigcup_{M>1} \left\{ a = (a_{k}) \in w : \sup_{n} \sum_{k \in K^{*}} |d_{nk} M^{-1}|^{p_{k}'} < \infty \right\}. \end{split}$$

Then,

 $\begin{aligned} &(i) \ \{c_0(\widehat{L},p)\}^{\beta} = \widehat{L}_6(p) \cap \widehat{L}_7 \cap \widehat{L}_8(p), \\ &(ii) \ \{c(\widehat{L},p\}^{\beta} = \{c_0(\widehat{L},p)\}^{\beta} \cap \widehat{L}_9, \\ &(iii) \ \{\ell_{\infty}(\widehat{L},p)\}^{\beta} = \widehat{L}_{10}(p) \cap \widehat{L}_{11}(p), \\ &(iv) \ \{\ell(\widehat{L},p)\}^{\beta} = \widehat{L}_{12}(p) \cap \widehat{L}_{13}(p). \end{aligned}$ 

#### 3 Lucas Core

Following Knopp, a core theorem is characterized a class of matrices for which the core of the transformed sequence is included by the core of the original sequence. For example Knopp Core Theorem [[33], p.138] states that  $K - core(Ax) \subseteq K - core(x)$  for all real valued sequences x whenever A is a positive matrix in the class  $(c:c)_{reg}$ .

Now, let us write

$$y_n(x) = \hat{L}_n(x) = \frac{1}{L_n L_{n-1} + 2} \sum_{k=1}^n L_{k-1}^2 x_k; \quad (k \in \mathbb{N}_0).$$

Then we can define  $\widehat{L}$  - core of a complex sequence as follows:

Let  $H_n$  be the least closed convex hull containing  $y_n(x), y_{n+1}(x), \dots$  Then,  $\hat{L}$ -core of x is the intersection of all  $H_n$ , i.e.,

$$\hat{L} - core(x) = \bigcap_{n=1}^{\infty} H_n$$

Now, we may give some inclusion theorems. For brevity, in what follows we write  $\tilde{e}_{nk}$  in place of

$$\frac{1}{L_n L_{n-1} + 2} \sum_{k=1}^n L_{k-1}^2 x_k$$

**Theorem 4.** Let  $B \in (c:c(\hat{L}))_{req}$ . Then,  $\hat{L} - core(Bx) \subseteq K - core(x)$  for all  $x \in \ell_{\infty}$  if and only if

$$\lim_{n} \sum_{k} |\tilde{e}_{nk}| = 1.$$
<sup>(1)</sup>

**Theorem 5.** Let  $B \in (st \cap \ell_{\infty} : c(\hat{L}))_{reg}$ . Then,  $\hat{L} - core(Bx) \subseteq st - core(x)$  for all  $x \in \ell_{\infty}$  if and only if (1) holds.

#### 4 References

- [1] V. Steven, Fibonacci and Lucas numbers, and the Golden Section Theory and Applications, Courier Corporation, 2008.
- M. Karakaş, H. Karabudak, Lucas sayilari ve sonsuz Toeplitz matrisleri üzerine bir uygulama, Cumhuriyet Sci. J., 38(3) (2017), 557-562. [2]
- M. Başarı, F. Başar, E. E. Kara, On the spaces of Fibonacci difference absolutely p-summable, null and convergent sequences, Sarajevo J. Math., **12**(25) (2016), 167-182. A. Das, B. Hazarika, Matrix transformation of Fibonacci band matrix on generalized bv—space and its dual spaces, Bol. Soc. Paran. Mat., **36**(3) (2018), 41-52. [3]
- [4]
- A. Das, B. Hazarika, Some new Fibonacci difference spaces of nonabsolute type and compact operators, Linear Multilinear Algebra, 65(12) (2017), 2551-2573. [5]
- S. Debnath, S. Saha, Some newly defined sequence spaces using regular matrix of Fibonacci numbers, AKU J. Sci. Eng., 14 (2014), 1-3. [6]
- [7] E. E. Kara, M. Basarir, An application of Fibonacci numbers into infinite Toeplitz matrices, Caspian J. Math. Sci., 1(1) (2012), 43-47.
- [8] E. E. Kara, M. Ilkhan. Some properties of generalized Fibonacci sequence spaces, Linear Multilinear Algebra, 64(11) (2016), 2208-2223
- E. E. Kara, S. Demiriz, Some new paranormed difference sequence spaces derived by Fibonacci numbers, Miskolc Math. Notes., 16(2) (2015), 907-923. [9]
- [10] M. Karakaş, A new regular matrix defined by Fibonacci numbers and its applications, BEU J. Sci., 4(2) (2015), 205-210.
- [11]
- M. Karakaş, A. M. Karakaş, New Banach sequence spaces that is defined by the aid of Lucas numbers, Ight Univ. J. Inst. Sci. Tech., 7(4) (2017), 103-111. M. Karakaş, A. M. Karakaş, A study on Lucas difference sequence spaces  $\ell_p(E(r, s))$  and  $\ell_{\infty}(E(r, s))$ , Maejo Int. J. Sci. Technol., 12(01) (2018), 70-78. [12]
- [13] I. J. Maddox, Paranormed sequence spaces generated by infinite matrices, Proc. Camb. Phios. Soc., 64 (1968), 335-340 .
- I. J.Maddox, Spaces of strongly summable sequences, Quart. J. Math. Oxford, 18(2) (1967), 345-355. [14]
- [15] H. Nakano, Modulared sequence spaces, Proc. Jpn. Acad., 27(2) (1951), 508-512
- B. Altay, F. Başar, On the paranormed Riesz sequence spaces of non-absolute type, Southeast Asian Bull. Math., 26 (2002), 701-715 . [16]
- [17]
- B. Altay, F. Başar, Some parameter Riesz sequence spaces of non-absolute type, Southeast Asian Bull. Math., **30** (2006), 591-608. B. Altay, F. Başar, Generalization of the sequence space  $\ell(p)$  derived by weighted mean, J. Math. Anal. Appl., **330** (2007), 174-185. [18]
- F. Başar, B. Altay, Matrix mappings on the space bs(p) and its  $\alpha -, \beta -$  and  $\gamma -$  duals, Aligarh Bull. Math., **21**(1) (2002), 79-91. [19]
- [20] M. Başarır, E. E. Kara, On some difference sequence spaces of weighted means and compact operators, Ann. Funct. Anal., 2(2) (2011), 116-131
- [21] H. Bilgin Ellidokuzoğlu, S. Demiriz, A. Köseoğlu, On the paranormed binomial sequence spaces, Univers. J. Math. Appl., 1(3) (2018), 137-147.
- [22] M. Candan, Some new sequence spaces defined by a modulus function and an infinite matrix in a seminormed space, J. Math. Anal., 3(2) (2012), 1-9.
- M. Candan, Domain of the double sequential band matrix in the classical sequence spaces, J. Inequal. Appl., 2012 (2012), 15 pages, doi.org/10.1186/1029-242X-2012-281. [23]
- M. Candan, Almost convergence and double sequential band matrix, Acta. Math. Sci., **34B**(2) (2014), 354-366. [24]
- [25] M. Candan, A new sequence space isomorphic to the space  $\ell(p)$  and compact operators, J. Math. Comput. Sci., 4(2) (2014), 306-334.
- M. Candan, Domain of the double sequential band matrix in the spaces of convergent and null sequences, Adv. Difference Edu., 2014 (2014), 18 pages, doi.org/10.1186/1687-[26] 1847-2014-163.
- [27] M. Candan, A. Güneş, Paranormed sequence space of non-absolute type founded using generalized difference matrix, Proc. Nat. Aca. Sci., India section A: Physical Sciences, 85(2) (2015), 269-276.
- U. Ulusu, E. Dündar, Asymptotically I-Cesaro equivalence of sequences of sets, Univers. J. Math. Appl., 1(2) (2018), 101-105. [28]
- [29] H. Bilgin Ellidokuzoğlu, S. Demiriz, A. Köseoğlu, On the paranormed binomial sequence spaces, Univers. J. Math. Appl., 1(3) (2018), 1-11.
- H. Polat, Some new Pascal sequence spaces, Fundam. J. Math. Appl., 1(1) (2018), 61-68. [30]
- S. Altundağ, On generalized difference lacunary statistical convergence in a paranormed space, J. Inequal. Appl., 2013 (2013), 7 pages, doi.org/10.1186/1029-242X-2013-256. [31] S. Altundağ, M. Başarır, On generalized paranormed statistically convergent sequence spaces defined by Orlicz function, J. Inequal. Appl., 2009 (2009), Article ID 729045, 13 pages, doi:10.1155/2009/729045. [32]
- [33] R. G. Cooke, Infinite Matrices and Sequence Spaces, Macmillan, London, 1950.

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 36-39

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# An Algorithm for Solutions to the Elliptic Quaternion Matrix Equation AX = B

ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

Hidayet Huda Kosal<sup>1</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Department of Mathematics, Faculty of Science and Arts, Sakarya University, Sakarya, Turkey, ORCID:0000-0002-4083-462X \* Corresponding Author E-mail: hhkosal@sakarya.edu.tr

**Abstract:** In this paper, the existence of solution to the elliptic quaternion matrix equations AX = B is characterized and solutions of this matrix equation are derived by means of real representations. Also, our results are illustrated with an example.

Keywords: Elliptic quaternion, Elliptic quaternion matrix, Real representation of elliptic quaternion matrices.

#### **1** Introduction and Preliminaries

The well-known concept of the real quaternion was first introduced by Hamilton in 1843 [1]. It has four components, i.e.

$$q = q_r + q_i i + q_j j + q_k k$$

where  $q_r, q_i, q_j, q_k \in R$  and i, j and k satisfy

$$i^{2} = j^{2} = k^{2} = -1, ij = -ji = k, ik = -ki = -j, jk = -kj = i.$$

The real quaternion algebra plays an important role in matrix analysis, quantum physics, kinematics, differential geometry, game development, image and signal processing etc. Thus, there are number of studies associated with real quaternions [2, 3]. Since the multiplication of real quaternions is non-commutative, all results about the complex numbers cannot be generalized in real quaternions. This problem restricts the applications of real quaternions. In addition, this can increase the complexity of many processes.

The concept of commutative quaternions was first introduced by Schütte and Wenzel [4]. The major difference between commutative quaternions and real quaternions is commutativeness of the multiplication, which are commutative for commutative quaternions. There are many studies on commutative quaternions in literature. Catoni et al. studied the functions of commutative quaternions variable and obtained generalized Cauchy-Riemann conditions [5]. Pei et. al introduced digital signal and image processing using commutative quaternions. For color image processing, they defined a simplified polar form of commutative quaternions to represent the color image and showed that this representation is useful to process color images in the brightness-hue-saturation color space [4]. In [6], Isokawa et al. investigated two types of multistate Hopfield neural networks based on commutative quaternions. Moreover, Kosal and Tosun investigated some algebraic properties of commutative quaternion matrices by means of complex representation of commutative quaternion matrices [7]. In [8], Kosal et al. constructed some explicit expression of the solution of the Kalman-Yakubovich-conjugate commutative quaternion matrix equations, by means of real representation of a commutative quaternion matrices. In [9], Kosal and Tosun studied some equivalence relations and related to results over the commutative quaternions and their matrices. In this sense, they defined consimilarity, semisimilarity and consemisimilarity over the commutative quaternions algebra and their matrix algebra and determined the equalities of these equivalence relations. In [10], Kosal and Tosun established universal similarity factorization equalities over the commutative quaternions and their matrices. Based on these equalities, real matrix representations of commutative quaternions and their matrices have been derived, and their algebraic properties and fundamental equations have been determined.

In this study, the existence of solution to the elliptic quaternion matrix equations AX = B is characterized and solutions of this matrix equation are derived by means of real representations. Elliptic quaternions are generalized form of commutative quaternions and so complex numbers [5]. Thus, the obtained results extend, generalize and complement some known commutative quaternions matrices and complex matrices results from the literature.

A set of elliptic quaternions is denoted by [5]

$$H_p = \{a = a_0 + a_1i + a_2j + a_3k : a_0, a_1, a_2, a_3 \in \mathbb{R}, i, j, k \notin \mathbb{R}\}$$

where

$$i^{2} = k^{2} = \alpha, j^{2} = 1, ij = ji = k, jk = kj = i, ki = ik = \alpha j, \alpha < 0.$$

There are three types of conjugate of  $a = a_0 + a_1i + a_2j + a_3k \in H_p$ . They are



$${}^{1}\bar{a} = a_{0} - a_{1}i + a_{2}j - a_{3}k,$$
$${}^{2}\bar{a} = a_{0} + a_{1}i - a_{2}j - a_{3}k, .$$
$${}^{3}\bar{a} = a_{0} - a_{1}i - a_{2}j + a_{3}k$$

and norm of a is defined

$$\|a\| = \sqrt[4]{|a|(1\bar{a})(2\bar{a})(3\bar{a})|}$$
  
=  $\sqrt[4]{\left[(a_0 + a_2)^2 - \alpha(a_1 + a_3)^2\right]\left[(a_0 - a_2)^2 - \alpha(a_1 - a_3)^2\right]}$ 

Addition, multiplication and scalar multiplication of the elliptic quaternions  $a = a_0 + a_1i + a_2j + a_3k$ ,  $b = b_0 + b_1i + b_2j + b_3k \in H_p$  and  $\lambda \in R$  are defined by

$$a + b = (a_0 + b_0) + (a_1 + b_1)i + (a_2 + b_2)j + (a_3 + b_3)k,$$

$$pq = (a_0b_0 + \alpha a_1b_1 + a_2b_2 + \alpha a_3b_3) + (a_1b_0 + a_0b_1 + a_3b_2 + a_2b_3)i + (a_0b_2 + a_2b_0 + \alpha a_1b_3 + \alpha a_3b_1)j + (a_3b_0 + a_0b_3 + a_1b_2 + a_2b_1)k$$

and

$$\lambda a = \lambda \left( a_0 + a_1 i + a_2 j + a_3 k \right) = \lambda a_0 + \lambda a_1 i + \lambda a_2 j + \lambda a_3 k$$

respectively.

If  $a = a_0 + a_1 i + a_2 j + a_3 k \in H_p$  and  $||a|| \neq 0$  then a has multiplicative inverses. Multiplicative inverse of a is given by

$$a^{-1} = \frac{\begin{pmatrix} 1\bar{a} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 2\bar{a} \end{pmatrix} \begin{pmatrix} 3\bar{a} \end{pmatrix}}{\|a\|^4}$$

#### 2 Elliptic Quaternion Matrices

The set of  $H_p^{m \times n}$  denotes all  $m \times n$  type matrices with elliptic quaternion entries. For  $A = (a_{ij})$ ,  $B = (b_{ij}) \in H_p^{m \times n}$ ,  $C = (c_{jk}) \in H_p^{n \times l}$  and  $\lambda \in R$ , the ordinary matrix addition, scalar multiplication and multiplication are defined by

$$A + B = (a_{ij}) + (b_{ij}) = (a_{ij} + b_{ij}) \in H_p^{m \times n},$$
$$\lambda A = \lambda (a_{ij}) = (\lambda a_{ij}) \in H_p^{m \times n}$$

and

$$AC = \left(\sum_{j=1}^{n} a_{ij} c_{jk}\right) \in H_p^{m \times n}$$

respectively.

There are three types' of conjugate of  $A = (a_{ij}) \in H_p^{m \times n}$ . They are

$${}^{1}\bar{A} = \left({}^{1}\overline{a_{ij}}\right) \in H_{p}^{m \times n}, {}^{2}\bar{A} = \left({}^{2}\overline{a_{ij}}\right) \in H_{p}^{m \times n} and {}^{3}\bar{A} = \left({}^{3}\overline{a_{ij}}\right) \in H_{p}^{m \times n}$$

A matrix  $A^T \in H_p^{n \times m}$  is transpose of  $A \in H_p^{m \times n}$ . Also  $A^{*_s} = ({}^s\overline{A})^T \in H_p^{m \times n}$ , s = 1, 2, 3, is called conjugate transpose according to the  $s^{th}$  conjugate of  $A \in H_p^{m \times n}$ .

**Theorem 1.** Let A and B be elliptic quaternion matrices of appropriate sizes. Then followings are satisfied:

1.  $({}^{s}\bar{A})^{T} = {}^{s}\overline{(A^{T})},$ 2.  $(AB)^{*_{s}} = B^{*_{s}}A^{*_{s}},$ 3.  $(\underline{AB})^{T} = B^{T}A^{T},$ 4.  ${}^{s}\overline{(AB)} = ({}^{s}\bar{A})({}^{s}\bar{B}),$ 5. If  $A^{-1}$  and  $B^{-1}$  exist then  $(AB)^{-1} = B^{-1}A^{-1},$ 6. If  $A^{-1}$  exists  $(A^{*_{s}})^{-1} = (A^{-1})^{*_{s}},$ 7.  $({}^{s}\bar{A})^{-1} = {}^{s}\overline{(A^{-1})}.$ 

This theorem can also be easily proved by direct calculation.

#### 3 **Real Representation of Elliptic Quaternion Matrices**

Let  $A = A_0 + A_1 i + A_2 j + A_3 k \in H_p^{m \times n}$  where  $A_0, A_1, A_2, A_3 \in \mathbb{R}^{m \times n}$ . For  $X \in H_p^{n \times n}$ , we will define the linear transformations

$$\eta_A(X) = AX.$$

Then, we get real representations of elliptic quaternion matrix  $A = A_0 + A_1 i + A_2 j + A_3 k \in H_p^{m \times n}$ 

$$\eta_p(A) = \begin{pmatrix} A_0 & \alpha A_1 & A_2 & \alpha A_3 \\ A_1 & A_0 & A_3 & A_2 \\ A_2 & \alpha A_3 & A_0 & \alpha A_1 \\ A_3 & A_2 & A_1 & A_0 \end{pmatrix} \in R^{4m \times 4n}.$$

**Theorem 2.** Let  $A, B \in H_p^{m \times n}, C \in H_p^{n \times p}$  and  $\lambda \in R$ . Then following identities are satisfied:

- 1.  $A = B \Leftrightarrow \eta_p(A) = \eta_p(B), \eta_p(A + B) = \eta_p(A) + \eta_p(B),$ 2.  $\eta_p(AC) = \eta_p(A) \eta_p(C), \eta_p(\lambda A) = \eta_p(A\lambda) = \lambda \eta_p(A),$ 3.  $A = \frac{1}{2-2\alpha} E_{4m} \eta_p(A) E_{4n}^{*1}$  where  $E_{4t} = (I_t \quad iI_t \quad jI_t \quad kI_t) \in H^{t \times 4t},$ 4. If A is a nonsingular matrix of size m then

$$\eta_p(A^{-1}) = \eta_p^{-1}(A), \ A^{-1} = \frac{1}{2 - 2\alpha} E_{4m} \eta_p^{-1}(A) E_{4m}^{*_1}$$

5.  $\eta_p(A) = R_{4m}^{-1}\eta_p(A) R_{4n}, \ \eta_p(A) = S_{4m}^{-1}\eta_p(A) S_{4n} \ and \ \eta_p(A) = T_{4m}^{-1}\eta_p(A) T_{4n} \ where$ 

$$Q_{4t} = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & \alpha I_t & 0 & 0 \\ I_t & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & \alpha I_t \\ 0 & 0 & I_t & 0 \end{pmatrix}, \quad S_{4t} = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 0 & I_t & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & I_t \\ I_t & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & I_t & 0 & 0 \end{pmatrix}, \quad T_{4t} = \begin{pmatrix} 0 & 0 & 0 & \alpha I_t \\ 0 & 0 & I_t & 0 \\ 0 & \alpha I_t & 0 & 0 \\ I_t & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{pmatrix}.$$

#### On Solutions to the Elliptic Quaternion Matrix Equation AX = B4

Now, we consider the solution of the

$$AX = B \tag{1}$$

by means of the real representation, where  $A \in H_p^{m \times n}$ ,  $B \in H_p^{m \times p}$ . We define the real representation of the matrix equation (1) by

$$\eta_p(A) Y = \eta_p(B). \tag{2}$$

**Proposition 1.** The equation (1) has a solution X if and only if the equation (2) has a solution  $Y = \eta_p(X)$ .

**Theorem 3.** The equation (2) has a solution  $Y \in \mathbb{R}^{4n \times 4p}$  if and only if the equation (1) has a solution  $X \in H_p^{n \times p}$ . In that case, if  $Y \in \mathbb{R}^{4n \times 4p}$  $R^{4n \times 4p}$  is a solution of (2), then the matrix

$$X = \frac{1}{8 - 8\alpha} \left( I_m \, i I_m \, j I_m \, k I_m \right) \left( Y + Q_{4m}^{-1} Y Q_{4p} + S_{4m}^{-1} Y S_{4p} + T_{4m}^{-1} Y T_{4p} \right) \begin{pmatrix} I_p \\ -i I_p \\ j I_p \\ -k I_p \end{pmatrix} \tag{3}$$

is a solution of (1).

Proof:

We show that if the real matrix

$$Y = \begin{pmatrix} Y_{11} & Y_{12} & Y_{13} & Y_{14} \\ Y_{21} & Y_{22} & Y_{23} & Y_{24} \\ Y_{31} & Y_{32} & Y_{33} & Y_{34} \\ Y_{41} & Y_{42} & Y_{43} & Y_{44} \end{pmatrix}, \ Y_{uv} \in \mathbb{R}^{n \times p}, \ u, v = 1, 2, 3, 4$$
(4)

is a solution to (2), then the matrix given in (3) is a solution to (1). Since  $Q_m^{-1}YQ_n = Y$ ,  $R_m^{-1}YR_n = Y$ ,  $S_m^{-1}YS_n = Y$ , we have

$$\eta_{p}(A) Q_{4m}^{-1} Y Q_{4p} = \eta_{p}(B), \ \eta_{p}(A) R_{4m}^{-1} Y R_{4p} = \eta_{p}(B), \ \eta_{p}(A) S_{4m}^{-1} Y S_{4p} = \eta_{p}(B).$$

This equation shows that if Y is a solution to (2), then  $Q_{4m}^{-1}YQ_{4p}$ ,  $R_{4m}^{-1}YR_{4p}$  and  $S_{4m}^{-1}YS_{4p}$  are also solutions to (2). Thus the following real matrix:

$$Y' = \frac{1}{4} \left( Y + Q_{4m}^{-1} Y Q_{4p} + R_{4m}^{-1} Y R_{4p} + S_{4m}^{-1} Y S_{4p} \right)$$
(5)

is a solution to (2). Now substituting (4) in (5) and the simplifying the expression, we easily get

$$Y' = \begin{pmatrix} Z_0 & \alpha Z_1 & Z_2 & \alpha Z_3 \\ Z_1 & Z_0 & Z_3 & Z_2 \\ Z_2 & \alpha Z_3 & Z_0 & \alpha Z_1 \\ Z_3 & Z_2 & Z_1 & Z_0 \end{pmatrix},$$

where

$$Z_{0} = \frac{1}{4} \left( Y_{11} + Y_{22} + Y_{33} + Y_{44} \right), \quad Z_{1} = \frac{1}{4} \left( \frac{Y_{12}}{\alpha} + Y_{21} + \frac{Y_{34}}{\alpha} + Y_{43} \right),$$
$$Z_{2} = \frac{1}{4} \left( Y_{13} + Y_{24} + Y_{31} + Y_{42} \right), \quad Z_{3} = \frac{1}{4} \left( \frac{Y_{14}}{\alpha} + Y_{23} + \frac{Y_{32}}{\alpha} + Y_{41} \right).$$

Thus we obtain

$$X = Z_1 + Z_2 i + Z_3 j + Z_4 k = \frac{1}{8 - 8\alpha} \left( I_m \, i I_m \, j I_m \, k I_m \right) \left( Y + Q_{4m}^{-1} Y Q_{4p} + S_{4m}^{-1} Y S_{4p} + T_{4m}^{-1} Y T_{4p} \right) \begin{pmatrix} I_p \\ -i I_p \\ j I_p \\ -k I_p \end{pmatrix}.$$

#### 5 **Numerical Algorithms**

Based on the discussions in the previous section, in this section we provide numerical algorithms for solving elliptic quaternion matrix equation AX = B.

- 1. Input  $A_0$ ,  $A_1$ ,  $A_2$ ,  $A_3$  and  $B_0$ ,  $B_1$ ,  $B_2$ ,  $B_3$ . 2. Form  $\eta_p(A)$  and  $\eta_p(B)$ . 3. Compute Y and  $Y' = \frac{1}{4} \left( Y + Q_{4m}^{-1} Y Q_{4p} + R_{4m}^{-1} Y R_{4p} + S_{4m}^{-1} Y S_{4p} \right)$ . 4. Calculate

$$X = \frac{1}{8 - 8\alpha} \left( I_m \, i I_m \, j I_m \, k I_m \right) \left( Y + Q_{4m}^{-1} Y Q_{4p} + S_{4m}^{-1} Y S_{4p} + T_{4m}^{-1} Y T_{4p} \right) \begin{pmatrix} I_p \\ -i I_p \\ j I_p \\ -k I_p \end{pmatrix}.$$

#### 6 **Numerical Examples**

Let us for solve the elliptic quaternion matrix equation

$$\begin{pmatrix} 1 & 1+i \\ j & k \end{pmatrix} X = \begin{pmatrix} 1+2i+j & 2+j+k \\ -1+j+2k & -1+i+2j \end{pmatrix}$$

Under consideration of the Theorem 3, real representation of given matrix equation is

$$\begin{pmatrix} 1 & 1 & 0 & \alpha & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 1 & 0 & 0 & \alpha \\ 0 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 1 & 1 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 1 & 1 & 0 \\ 1 & 0 & 0 & \alpha & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ 0 & 1 & 1 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{pmatrix} Y = \begin{pmatrix} 1 & 2 & 2\alpha & 0 & 1 & 1 & 0 & \alpha \\ -1 & -1 & 0 & \alpha & 1 & 2 & 2\alpha & 0 \\ 2 & 0 & 1 & 2 & 0 & 1 & 1 & 1 \\ 0 & 1 & -1 & -1 & 2 & 0 & 1 & 2 \\ 1 & 1 & 0 & \alpha & 1 & 2 & 2\alpha & 0 \\ 1 & 2 & 2\alpha & 0 & -1 & -1 & 0 & \alpha \\ 0 & 1 & 1 & 1 & 2 & 0 & 1 & 2 \\ 2 & 0 & 1 & 2 & 0 & 1 & -1 & -1 \end{pmatrix}$$

If we solve this equation, we have

$$Y = \begin{pmatrix} 1 & 2 & 2\alpha & 0 & -1 & -1 & -2\alpha & -\alpha \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 2 & 2 & 0 & 0 \\ 2 & 0 & 1 & 2 & -2 & -1 & -1 & -1 \\ 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 2 & 2 \\ -1 & -1 & -2\alpha & -\alpha & 1 & 2 & 2\alpha & 0 \\ 2 & 2 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \\ -2 & -1 & -1 & -1 & 2 & 0 & 1 & 2 \\ 0 & 0 & 2 & 2 & 0 & 0 & 0 & 0 \end{pmatrix}$$

Finally, we obtain

$$X = \frac{1}{8-8\alpha} \left( I_m \, i I_m \, j I_m \, k I_m \right) \left( Y + Q_{4m}^{-1} Y Q_{4p} + S_{4m}^{-1} Y S_{4p} + T_{4m}^{-1} Y T_{4p} \right) \begin{pmatrix} I_p \\ -i I_p \\ j I_p \\ -k I_p \end{pmatrix}$$
$$= \begin{pmatrix} 1+2i-j-2k & 2-j-k \\ 2j & 2j \end{pmatrix}.$$

`

#### Acknowledgement

The author are very much indebted to the Prof. Dr. Murat TOSUN for his constructive and valuable comments and suggestions which greatly improved the original manuscript of this paper.

#### 7 References

- [1] W. R. Hamilton, Lectures on quaternions, Hodges and Smith, Dublin; 1853.
- [2]
- [3]
- Y. Tian Y. Universal factorization equalities for quaternions integes and similar business. New York: 1099.
  Y. Tian Y. Universal factorization equalities for quaternion matrices and their applications, Math. J. Okoyama Univ., 41 (1999),45-62.
  S. L. Adler, Quaternionic quantum mechanic and quantum fields, Oxford U. P., New York; 1994.
  S. C. Pei, J. H. Chang, J. J. Ding, Commutative reduced biquaternions and their fourier transform for signal and image processing applications. IEEE Transactions on Signal Processing, 52 (2004), 2012-2031. [4]
- [5] F. Catoni, R. Cannata, P. Zampetti, An introduction to commutative quaternions, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebr., 16 (2005), 1-28.
- T. Isokawa, H. Nishimura, N. Matsui, Commutative quaternion and multistate hopfield neural networks, In Proc. Int. Joint Conf. Neural Netw., (2010), 1281-1286. [6]
- [7] H. H. Kosal, M. Tosun, Commutative quaternion matrices, Adv. Appl. Clifford Algebr., 24 (2014), 769-779.
- [8] H. H. Kosal, M. Akyigit, M. Tosun, Consimilarity of commutative quaternion matrices., Miskolc Math. Notes, 24 (2014), 769-779. H. H. Kosal, M. Tosun, Some equivalence relations and results over the commutative quaternions and their matrices, An. Stiint. Univ. Ovidius Constant a, Seria Mat., 16 (2015), [9]
- 965-977. [10] H. H. Kosal, M. Tosun, Universal similarity factorization equalities for commutative quaternions and their matrices, Linear Multilinear Algebra, (2018), DOI:10.1080/03081087.2018.1439878.

Conference Proceedings of Science and Technology, 1(1), 2018, 40-45

Conference Proceeding of 7th International Eurasian Conference on Mathematical Sciences and Applications (IECMSA-2018).

# An Evaluation of Mathematics Achievement of High School Students with Mathematics Anxiety

ISSN: 2651-544X

http://dergipark.gov.tr/cpost

Şüheda Güray<sup>1,\*</sup>

<sup>1</sup> Başkent University, Ankara, Turkey, ORCID:0000-0002-9562-1461 \* Corresponding Author E-mail: ssguray@baskent.edu.tr

Abstract: In this study, we evaluate the relationship between anxiety and success regarding math classes by measuring, through Mathematics Anxiety Scale, the anxiety levels of first, second, and third grade public high schoolers for math classes. This study has been applied to the students of 9-A, 10-B, 11-A classes in the 75th Year Anatolian High School and the students of FL9-C, FL10-F, FL11-A classes in the Ayseabla College Science High School. During the collection of data, the scale that has been used to measure the anxiety of students is Erol's "Mathematics Anxiety Scale", [1]. The collected data has been inspected by t-testing, analysis of variance and especially correlation analysis. The purpose of the analysis is a contrast and comparison of the math anxiety and the success of the students based on their grade levels. The sample of the research consists of 30 female and 33 male students of 9-C, 10-F, 11-A classes in 75th Year Anatolian High School and 31 female and 27 male students of FL-9A, FL-10B, FL-11A in Ayseabla College Science High School. As a consequence, the sample consists of 121 students. The Math Anxiety Scale has been implemented to 121 of these students. The Math Anxiety scale, which has been implemented during this study, has a Cronbach Alpha coefficient of 0.91, [2]. The scale consists of 4 questions; each question has 4 Likert type answers. The highest attainable score is 180 whereas the lowest attainable score is 45. According to this standard, the scores between 45-68 is considered to be low, 69-109 is normal, 109-128 is anxious, and 129-180 is very anxious [3]. The results of this study show that there is not a noticeable difference between the grade type and the anxiety levels. However, a correlation has been discovered between the anxiety levels and success rates of the students in general. Consequently, as a result of the conclusions that have been reached through the evaluation of this correlation, certain proposals have been developed.

Keywords: Math anxiety scale, Interest in Math.

#### 1 Introduction

In the realization of learning, besides individual characteristics such as age, intelligence, motivation, past experiences, internal communication, the state of anxiety is one of the most important factors affecting learning. Learner [4] concluded that, as a result of his research on mathematics, the fear and anxiety of mathematics makes the child think clearly, make an organization among the information and make relationships difficult and hamper. The state of anxiety at the intellectual, behavioral and physiological levels will decrease the attention of the students on the course and this will make learning difficult. In order for learning to take place, a permanent and effective communication between the billions of cells in the brain is needed. Anxiety prevents the establishment of this communication within the brain and adversely affects the mental activities of reasoning and abstract thinking. Anxiety level may affect the concentration and interest of the student who is constantly working in the classroom because of the fear of being successful in the exam and cannot provide the concentration of the student who is tired of studying, and cannot spend the duration of the study effectively [5]. Thus, various sizes of anxiety; future concerns, reading anxiety, test anxiety, math anxiety, and so on occurs. Mathematics Anxiety, the main theme of this study, is an important sensory factor that affects students negatively and causes negative attitudes towards mathematics [6]. Attitude refers to a person's positive or negative feelings about showing certain behavior. According to Tavşancıl [7], the tendency to react positively or negatively on learned against certain objects, situations, institutions, concepts or other people is called attitude. The information learned on any subject, even if they have fallen over time, is easily unforgettable [8]. Cognitive factors causing math anxiety through affective factors are related to lack of knowledge of teachers and authoritarian instructors, lack of mathematical background of students, necessity of memorizing of formulas, the prevalence of non-real-life problem applications, strict, difficult and time-bound examinations of concrete materials mathematics, normative books and the difficulty of some subjects [9]. Affective factors are related to personality types, mathematics avoidance, negative attitudes towards mathematics, lack of trust, level of mathematics achievement, negative school experiences, gender bias, family and teacher behaviors [10].

Mathematics-related researches have also shown that people are associated with negative experiences and training experienced in educational life. Teachers' negative attitudes and unrealistic lesson practices, time-limited mathematics testing, fear of doing something wrong in the classroom, asking teachers something, inadequate group work and the chance to work, material and manipulation can be important reasons for increasing math anxiety.

The methods used in mathematics education and the structure of mathematical concepts can be defined as situational reasons. Important reasons for creating mathematics anxiety are the teaching strategies used by mathematics teachers and teachers [11]. The behaviors of an



authoritarian mathematics teacher may have negative effects such as failure, inadequacy and inadequate feeling on the students [12]. Mathematical concepts that have no connection in real life and therefore abstract content can increase anxiety [11]. The negative effects of math anxiety on mathematics learning may cause the individual to fail to escape mathematics naturally [13], [14]. While the negative effects of math anxiety on mathematics learning are so important, it is possible to cope with math anxiety by knowing and eliminating the causes. In this study, the differences and relation between Mathematical Anxiety Levels and Mathematics Achievements will be evaluated according to the grade levels of high school students from two different school types.

#### *1.1* Scope and importance of the research

This research aims to determine the anxiety and mathematics achievement levels of high school students who have an important place in the education system of our country. In order to achieve this basic goal, the following questions are sought:

• What are the math anxiety levels and mathematics achievements of the students in private and public high schools in Turkey?

• Are there any differences between math anxiety levels and mathematics achievement of the students in terms the type of high schools they are enrolled in Turkey?

This research is important in terms of the effect of factors such as the type of school, gender, which affect the formation of anxiety in mathematics anxiety and mathematics achievement levels of high school students and thus guidance on reducing or completely eliminating the anxiety which may negatively affect mathematics achievement.

#### 1.2 Counting and limitations of research

It was accepted that the students studying in the state and private schools participating in the research reflect their true feelings and thoughts while answering the questions in the measurement tools. This research is limited to data on the 2017-2018 academic year.

#### 2 Method

In this part of the research; research model, sample and data collection tool, and analysis are emphasized.

#### 2.1 Research model

In this study; State Anatolian High School and Private High School1, High School2 and High School3. "Mathematics Anxiety" emotions and thoughts of the class students have been tried to be measured. In this context, research is a survey model research.

#### 2.2 Data collection tool

In order to determine the anxiety levels of mathematics students of 75th Year Anatolian high school (State Anatolian High School) and Ayseabla College(Private), who are the sample of the research, Mathematics Anxiety Scale which was developed by Richardson and Suinn (1972) (Scale named as Math Anxiety Rating Scale-MARS-A) and adapted to Turkish culture by Erol [1], was used. Math anxiety scale which is a 4-item Likert-type scale of 45 items and the validity and reliability study was conducted, the Cronbach Alpha coefficient was determined as 0.91 for this study and it was accepted that the scale was reliable [15].

The highest score is 180 and the lowest score is 45. 45-68 Low, 69-108 Normal, 109-128 anxiety, 129-180 High anxiety was determined according to the scores obtained from this scale [3]. Student success grades; at the end of the semester the teacher was taken. No measurements have been made.

#### 2.3 Sampling, data collection

A sample of 121 students, of which 58 students in the Ayseabla College and a total of 63 students in the 75th Year Anatolian High School, were selected. Mathematical Anxiety Scale was applied to the general mathematics course before applying; In the analysis of the data, it was examined whether the levels of math anxiety and success differed by using frequency distribution and variance analysis. Then the t-test was used to evaluate the relationship between gender and the difference between anxiety and success.

#### 2.4 Analysis process

The data were entered into the SPSS program and the frequency and percentiles of the question items of the scale were used according to the school type variable levels, and the variance analysis (ANOVA) was used for the difference between the school type grade level anxiety scores and the spring year math achievement scores, and the correlation between the math anxiety scores and the math achievement scores were examined. Then the t-test was used to evaluate the relationship between gender and the difference between anxiety and success.

#### 3 Results and Findings

In this section, the findings and comments are determined in accordance with the purpose of the research. The distribution of the school type, the grade level and the characteristics of the students are shown in Table 1.

 Table 1
 Sampling Characteristics

School	9th grade	10th grade	11th grade
75th Year Anatolian High School	12 Females	10 Females	8 Females
	9 Males	12 Males	12 Males
Ayse Abla College	9 Females	12 Females	10 Females
	13 Females	5 Females	9 Females

#### 3.1 Differences between school types

75th Year Anatolian High School has been investigated by analyzing the ANOVA test in which the grade level math anxiety scores of high school students have been differentiated and the results are presented in Table 2. (9A;N=21,Mean=103,1905),(10B;N=22,Mean=95,8182) ((11A;N=20,Mean=90.6500)

ANOVA									
Anxiety Score	Sum	of	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.			
	Squares								
Between Groups	446,685		2	223,343	,499	,610			
Between Groups	26869,061		60	447,818					
Total	27315,746		62						

75th Year Anatolian High School 9-C, 10-F, 11-A students' Anxiety Points in the analysis of the difference between the average; Firstly, the homogeneity of the variance of the groups was analyzed and the result; Test of Homogeneity of Variances was found to be  $p > \alpha 0, 875 > 0, 05$  and variance, homogeneity was observed. The above findings were obtained. According to the findings;  $0, 610 > 0.05, p > \alpha$ , Red hypothesis (Ho), hypothesis (Ho). In the evaluation, there was no difference between the 75th year Anatolian High School Grade Anxiety Grade scores. High school students' private high school Ayseabla College Science High School grade level math anxiety scores were analyzed by ANOVA test and the results are shown in Table 3. (FL9A;N=21,Mean=81.5714),(FL10A;N=19,Mean=78.1579) (FL11A;N=18,Mean=65.1111)

Table 3 Ayseabla College Grade Level Math Anxiety Score ANOVA Analysis Results

				ANOVA		
Anxiety Score	Sum	of	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
	Squares					
Between Groups	1153,947		2	576,974	0,868	,426
Between Groups	22376,122		56	406,839		
Total	23530,069		58			

Ayseabla college class levels (Science High School 9-A, Science High School 10-B, Science High School 11-A class) and the Mathematics Anxiety Score Scale that were obtained according to the results of Mathematics Anxiety Score Scale were used. First of all, the homogeneity of the variance of the groups was analyzed and the results of the Test of Homogeneity of Variances were found to be  $p > \alpha 0, 129 > 0, 05$ , and when the homogeneity of variance was observed, ANOVA was applied.  $0, 426 > 0.05, p > \alpha$ , Reject Alternate Hypothesis (Ha), Accept Null hypothesis (Ho). Assessment: There is no statistical difference among Ayseabla College Class Levels Anxiety Points.

#### 3.2 Differences between genders

The t-test results of the 75th year Anatolian High School students' mathematics anxiety levels were investigated in Table 4.

M.d.	Gender	Ν	Mean	Std. Devia-	Std. Error	t	Sig(p)
Math				tion	Mean		0.1
Anxiety	Females	26	93,2692	15,69855	3,07874	-1,532	0,196
	Males	37	100,6216	20,61870	3,38969		

According to Table 4, there is no difference between the gender groups in the 75th year Anatolian high school in terms of math anxiety  $(0, 196 > 0, 05; p > \alpha)$ .

3.3 t-Test Results of Math Anxiety Differences between Gender Groups

The t-test results of Ayseabla College Science High School students' mathematics anxiety levels were investigated in Table 5.

 Table 5
 Ayseabla College t-Test Results Related to Differences between Gender Groups

	Gender	Ν	Mean	Std. Deviation	Std. Error Mean	t				
Math Anxiety	Females	29	82,8276	19,72864	3,66352	-2,469				
	Males	29	96,0000	20,88232	3,87775					

Table 8	Ayseabla	College Scienc	e High	School	Mathematics	Achievement	Turkey	(LSD)	) multiple	comparison	tests
---------	----------	----------------	--------	--------	-------------	-------------	--------	-------	------------	------------	-------

Multiple Comparisons											
Tukey HSD											
(DGrada Laval	(I)Grada Laval	Maan Difference(LI)	Std Error	C:-	95% Confidence Interval						
(I)Olade Level	(J)Olade Level	Mean Difference(1-J)	Stu. Entor	Joig.	Lower Bound	Upper Bound					
FLOA	FL10A	3,41353	6,69124	,867	-12,7040	19,5311					
FL9A	FL11A	16,46032*	6,78812	,048	,1094	32,8112					
EL 10D	FL9A	-3,41353	6,69124	,867	-19,5311	12,7040					
TLIUD	FL11A	13,04678	6,95106	,155	-3,6966	29,7902					
EL 11A	FL9C	-16,46032*	6,78812	,048	-32,8112	-,1094					
FLIIA	FL10F	-13,04678	6,95106	,155	-29,7902	3,6966					
*The mean difference is significant at the 0.05 level											

According to Table 5, there is no difference in terms of math anxiety among the gender groups of the 75th year Anatolian high schools  $(0, 198 > 0, 05; p > \alpha)$ .

#### 3.3 Differences between school type mathematics achievement grade levels

The variance analysis and the levels of the differences in the mathematics achievement level of the students who make up the school type sample according to the grade level they have studied are also investigated by Turkey (LSD) multiple comparison tests and the results are given. The Mathematics Achievement Score of 75th Year Anatolian High School students sample was analyzed by ANOVA test, and the results are presented in Table 6. Student success grades; At the end of the semester the math teacher evaluated. Evaluation was used. No measurements.

Table 6 Results of Analysis of Variance Related to Differences between Mathematics Achievement Points

ANOVA	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square	F	Sig.
Between Groups	2642,141	2	1321,071	2,965	,069
Within Groups	28072,359	3	445,593		
Total	30714,500	5			

#### 9C, 10F, 11A CLASSES

In the sample, the homogeneity of the variance of the groups was analyzed and the result; Test of Homogeneity of Variances was found to be  $p > \alpha 0, 254 > 0, 05$  and variance, homogeneity was observed.

The above findings were obtained. According to Table 6, there is no difference in terms of the 75th year Anatolian High School Grade Math Levels. (0.069 > 0.05 i.e.  $p > \alpha$ , Reject  $H_a$ , Accept  $H_0$ .

The mathematics achievement scores of the students in Ayseabla College of Science High School which the grade level achievement scores were taken from the course lecturer were analyzed through ANOVA test whether the scores were differentiated or not and the results were presented in Table 7.

Table 7 Results of analysis of variance related to differences between mathematics achievement points.

ANOVA			
	Sum of Squares	df	Mean Square
Between Groups	2849,656	2	1424,828
Within Groups	24563,447	55	446,608
Total	27413,103	57	

#### FL 9A, FL 10B, FL 11A CLASSES

In the sample, the homogeneity of the variance of the groups was analyzed and the result; Test of Homogeneity of Variances was found to be  $p > \alpha 0, 473 > 0, 05$  and variance, homogeneity was observed. The above findings were obtained. According to Table 6, there is a difference in Ayseabla College Mathematics Achievement Points. (0.049 < 0.05,  $p < \alpha$ ,  $H_a$  Accept,  $H_0$  Reject). The levels of the differences were investigated with the help of Turkey (LSD) multiple comparison test and the results are given in Table ??.

According to Table ??; FL9A-FL11A ( $p < \alpha$ , 0, 048 < 0, 05) and FL11A-FL9C ( $p < \alpha$ , 0, 048 < 0, 05) There is a difference in success.

#### 3.4 The relationship between math anxiety scores and mathematics achievement at the school level

A relationship between the grade level mathematics anxiety scores and mathematics achievement in both School types is analyzed by Correlation Analysis and explained in Table 9.

According to Table 8, there was no correlation between 75th year Anatolian High School and Ayseabla College Class Levels Mathematics Anxiety Scores and Mathematics Achievement Score (0, 379 > 0, 05, 0, 375 > 0, 05, 0.86 > 0, 05, 0, 902 > 0, 05, 0, 847 > 0, 05, 0, 243 > 0.05)

#### Table 9 School type Math anxiety and mathematics achievement Correlation scores table

	75thYear Anatolian High School			Ayseabla College		
	AL9C	AL10F	AL11A	FL9A	FL10B	FL11B
Per Cor (Rxy)	0,208	-0,210	0,034	-0,028	0,046	0,0281
Sig.(2 Tailed) (p)	0,379	0,375	0,886	0,902	0,847	0,243
	0,379 > 0,05	0,375 > 0,05	0,886 > 0,05	0,902 > 0,05	0,847 > 0,05	0,243 > 0,05

#### 3.5 Type of school mathematics anxiety status evaluation table

In the evaluation of the Mathematical Anxiety Scale m, the highest score is 180 and the lowest score is 45. 45-68 Low, 69-108 Normal, 109-128 anxiety, 129-180 High anxiety was determined according to the scores obtained from this scale (Erktin, Donmez, Ozel, 2006). The evaluation of the school type sample is explained in Table 10.

Table 10 School type Math Anxiety Scale evaluation table

	75thYear Anatolian High School		Ayseabla College			
ANXIETY SITUATION	AL9C	AL10F	AL11A	FL9A	FL10B	FL11B
45-68 Low	1	-	3	2	6	-
69-108 Normal	12	16	14	13	8	18
109-128 With Anxiety	6	6	2	3	3	2
129-180 High Concerned Anxiety	2	-	1	4	-	1
Total	21	22	20	22	17	19

In the descriptive evaluation of the Mathematics Anxiety Scale scores; It is seen that the next grade level in which the anxiety exists in the first grade level of both school types is decreasing.

#### 4 Conclusion, Discussion

According to the research results; 75th Year Anatolian High School and Ayseabla colleges Science High School Grade High School students did not differ in terms of math anxiety levels ( $F(3) = 0, 4999, 0, 610 > 0.05, p > \alpha$ ). There is no statistically significant difference between the scores of mathematics grades of high school students according to their grade level. So, students' concerns about mathematics do not change significantly according to the level of the class they study; normal, 109-128 anxious, 129-180 high concerned; Anxious and High Anxiety Rate: It is seen in Table 11 that students' prejudices towards mathematics are broken as the grade level increases, and this result is seen in Table 11.

Table 11 Anxious a	and High Anxious
--------------------	------------------

75thYear Anatolian High School			Ayseabla College			
Γ	AL9C AL10F AL11A		FL9A	FL10B	FL11B	
Γ	%38	%27	%15	%31	%18	%5

Another result obtained from the study; the mathematics achievement level of the sample which applied both types of mathematics Mathematical Anxiety Scale was not significant in the 75th Year Anatolian High School while there was a significant difference between the grade levels of Ayseabla Science High School.

The difference from the FL11A subgroup was verified in the Tukey result. This can be interpreted as the increase in the level of mathematics achievement as the class level increases In both types of schools, Scale could not be applied because senior students were reported in the preparation of university exam. It may be thought that the inclusion of this sample will change the outcome of the data. Another finding found in the study was that there was no statistically significant difference between the levels of anxiety related to mathematics according to the gender variable  $(t - 2, 469, 0, 198 > 0, 05, \text{ so } p > \alpha)$ .

This finding showed that the gender variable had a significant effect on students' math anxiety. However, the mean score of the female students about mathematics (= 82.8) was higher than that of male students (= 96). From here, it can be said that male students are slightly more anxious than female students.

Another finding reached in the study is; Correlation analysis between school type grade level anxiety score and mathematics achievement was not found to be significant. Correlation analysis rates are; 75thYear Anatolian High School (9C; 0, 379 > 0, 05 -10F; 0, 375 > 0, 05 -11A; 0.86 > 0, 05), Ayseabla College Science High School (FL9A; 0, 902 > 0, 05 -FL10B, 0, 847 > 0, 05 -FL11A 0, 243 > 0, 05) The relationship of anxiety and success is not the case in two school types. This is an important finding for the purpose of the study. In the frequency analysis of the sample; with a high frequency (Question19; 55%). The most important cause of the students to worry about the mathematics exams were determined as unannounced. In this case, it is emphasized that the anxiety against the course increases in making an unannounced examination.

Another question item with high frequency is question 15, its frequency is 80%. In simple mathematical operations, he was asked if he doesn't sound like he couldn't calculate money, for example. This situation can be defined as a lack of self-confidence in the use and implementation of mathematics in daily life. Another question is; Question12 is the percentage and the frequency percentage is 65%. I'm afraid to

explain even the problems I can solve. This situation can be defined as lack of self-confidence against mathematics.

#### 4.1 Suggestions

The student fails when he/she is worried, and when he/she fails, the student is afraid of the lesson and the failure is realized. The students studying in the small class are found to be more anxious than the students in the higher level.

This situation was determined in the research findings that these students may cause a new school, new friends and different teachers to have a new system in their transition from primary to secondary education and this may cause anxiety.

The best constructive recommendation for this situation; It can be suggested to plan and implement adaptation programs, especially the 9th-grade students, general contents of the courses, the introduction of teachers, the school environment and the school life, the examination system and reducing anxiety. Orientation programs can be prepared. In addition, as the grade level increases, the increase in mathematics achievement can be interpreted as the focus on the lessons as a channel to the preparation of the university exam. In item frequency evaluation of the scale; the most common cause of the students to worry about the mathematics exams were determined unquestionably (Question19; 55%). For this situation that causes the student to be taken into consideration, before the examination of the students' readiness to take into account, if necessary, determining the dates of the exam with the students, will be shown to have a positive effect on the reduction of anxiety. The problem of simple mathematical operations, for example, not to deduct from the money to calculate the top of the sound (Question15; 80%), the suggestion of the student is not kept away from simple mathematical calculations in daily life and the practical calculation of the acquisition of the family to be sent to shopping, for example.

The percentage frequency of Question 12 in scale is 65%. It is stated that I am afraid to explain even the problems I can solve. For this situation, the lack of self-esteem for mathematics operations is the fact that it was proposed to be introduced in the previous years in the family and that it should be started from the pre-school.

#### 5 References

- [1] E. Erol, Prevalence and correlates of math anxiety in Turkish high school students, Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Boğaziçi Üniversitesi, İstanbul, 1989.
- [2] Y. Kara, Okullardaki örgütsel kültürün okul yöneticilerinin etik davranışları üzerindeki etkisi, Yayınlanmamış Yüksek Lisans Tezi, İstanbul Üniversitesi, Sosyal Bilimler Enstitüsü, İstanbul, 2006.
- [3] E. Erktin, G. Dönmez, S. Özel, Matematik kaygısı ölçeğinin psikometrik özellikleri, Eğitim ve Bilim, 31(140) (2006), 26–33.
- [4] R. J. Rotella, J. D. Learner *Responding to Competitive Pleasure*, in R.N. Singer, M. Murphey & L. Tennant (eds.), Handbook on Research in Sport Psychology, New York, 1993, 528–541.
- [5] A. Yıldız, Kaygının belirtileri ve gizli nedenleri, https://kisiselbasari.com/kayginin-belirtileri-ve-gizli-nedenleri.html, 2014.
- [6] D. J. L. Tooke, C. Leonard, Effectiveness of a mathematics methods course in reducing mathematics anxiety of preservice elementary teachers, School Sci. Math., 98(3) (1998), 136–142.
- [7] E. Tavşancıl, Tutumların ölçülmesi ve SPSS ile veri analizi, Ankara, Nobel Yayın Dağıtım, 2010.
- [8] N. Nazlıçiçek, E. Erktin, İlköğretim matematik öğretmenleri için kısaltılmış matematik-tutum ölçeği, V. Ulusal Fen Bilimleri ve Matematik Eğitimi Kongresi, 2002, Ankara.
- [9] M. Berkedmir, İşik, A., Çikili, Y., Matematik kaygısını oluşturan ve artıran öğretmen davranış ve çözümleri, Eurasian J. Edu. Res., 16(2004), 88–94.
- [10] M. Baloğlu, Matematik korkusunu yenmek, Kuram ve Uygulamada Eğitim Bilimleri Dergisi, 1(1) (2001), 59-76.
- [11] M. Baloğlu, Üniversite öğrencilerinin matematik kaygı düzeyleri açısından karşılaştırılması, XIII. Ulusal Eğitim Bilimleri Kurultayı, 6–9 Temmuz, İnönü Üniversitesi, Eğitim Fakültesi, (2001), Malatya.
- [12] T. Keçeci, Matematik kaygisi ve korkusu ile mücadele yollari, 2nd. International Conference on new Trends in Education and Their Implications, 27–29 April, (2011), Antalya, Turkey.
- [13] M. Durmaz, Ortaöğretim öğrencilerinin (10. Snuf) temel psikolojik ihtiyaçlarının karşılanmışlık düzeyleri, motivasyon ve matematik kaygısı arasındaki ilişkilerin belirlenmesi, Yayımlanmamış Yüksek Lisans Tezi, Abant İzzet Baysal Üniversitesi Eğitim Bilimler Enstitüsü, Bolu, Türkiye, 2012.
- [14] M. İlhan, M. Öner Sünkür, Matematik kaygısının matematik başarısını yordama gücünün cinsiyet ve sınıf değişkeni açısından İncelenmesi, Gaziantep Uni. J. Sci., 2(3) (2013), 427–441.
- [15] K. Yenilmez, N. Özbey, Özel okul ve devlet okulu öğrencilerinin matematik kaygı düzeyleri üzerine bir araştırma, Eğitim Fakültesi Dergisi XIX(2) (2006), 431–448.